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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HoNG KONG H-SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE INFORMATION

Number of issued shares as at 1,999,309,639 Shares
31 December 2013: (1,513,549,639 A Shares,
and 485,760,000 H Shares)

Board lot (H Shares) 1,000 H Shares
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Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes
A Shares: Weichai Power (#4%£%)77) 000338
H Shares: Weichai Power (#4%&)/7) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings
A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

INVESTORS AND MEDIA RELATIONS

Securities Department

Tel: (86) 536-819 7069

Fax: (86) 536-819 7073

Website: www.weichaipower.com
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Fax: (852) 2576 1990
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Dear Shareholders, B AR R
On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the audited annual results of AANBRREZEERAQRNEHIE-_ZT—=
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013. FH+ZA=Z+ " BREBAEBENEFEE-
I. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS — & E Ok
In 2013, amidst the complex and changing general economic conditions, —E = HUEFREMNETELE
the national economy continued to demonstrate a trend of overall e BRKEEE 2SI HE ‘“”$ﬁ%
stability with progress and positive outlook. Throughout the year of p=gan) ﬁL B E R e g —
2013, the Chinese economy was generally stable, with a gross domestic —=ZF2F HPEREKBEETHEET ﬁ%
product of RMB56.88 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of BRANAEHLBEETIEG8ERE T At
7.7%. On a quarter-to-quarter basis, it grew by 7.7% in the first BEII% HZEEE —ZTERKLEER
quarter, 7.5% in the second quarter, 7.8% in the third quarter and 77% —FEBRIS% ZFEEE
7.7% in the fourth quarter. 78% OEEFILRT7% °
During the reporting period, benefiting from factors including the BREHAN SERNCELELSBE
stability of the general economy, the ongoing rebound of fixed asset FTEREREHEERBUANDRITE
investments, and the swift development of the logistics industry, the RFEERREREZ B RITEERE#H -
heavy-duty truck industry achieved recovery and attained an aggregate SFELFHEETTNER BLIEE
sales volume on a full-year basis of 774,100 units, representing a year- 21.7% ° LB R E‘F?ﬁ% HERNEER
on-year growth of 21.7%. Due to the substantial growth of sales in the FE REHAN RARIHPEEERAR
heavy-duty truck market in the PRC, the Company’s aggregate sales of @J W28E & Rt EH349%  BLE™
heavy-duty truck engines amounted to 280,000 units, representing a B FEER36.2% Ak EA36EAS
year-on-year growth of 34.9% during the reporting period, bringing the 2 ETTERNKARBZHBELED
Company's share in the auxiliary market for heavy-duty trucks to 36.2%, ARABERFAGIRAER REER
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representing a year-on-year growth of 3.6 percentage points, and
maintaining the Company’s distinctly leading position in the industry.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (BRFa &% /TE B[R A R]), a
controlling subsidiary of the Company, reported an aggregate sales of
85,800 units of heavy-duty trucks for the year, representing a year-on-
year increase of 6.6%, ranking the fifth in the domestic heavy-duty truck
industry in the PRC. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (BRPE ALt ARE
£727]), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, has further
consolidated its leading position in the industry with its aggregate sales
of 565,700 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-year increase of
25.2%.

2013 represented a year of rising track for the industry of construction
machinery, notwithstanding the fact that the industry is yet to fully
rebound from its trough. During the reporting period, the fixed asset
investment in the PRC reached RMB43.65 trillion in aggregate,
representing a year-on-year growth of 19.6%. The total planned
investments for newly-commenced construction projects reached
RMB35.78 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 14.2%.
Investments in property development reached RMB8.6 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 19.8%, an increase of 3.6
percentage points year-on-year. The construction machinery industry in
the PRC reported sales of 705,000 units, representing a year-on-year
growth of 3.9%. Among others, the sales volume of wheel loaders with
a load capacity of 5 tonnes was 111,000 units, representing a year-on-
year growth of 7.4%. Riding on its product advantages, the Company
sold a total of 72,500 units of engines for wheel loaders with a load
capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a year-on-year growth of 15.9%,
resulting in the Company’s 65.33% market share in the market of wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, and maintaining the
Company'’s leading position in this area.

During the reporting period, the passenger vehicle market achieved
growth while maintaining stability. Affected by the factors including the
modest recovery of the general economy, the expedited urbanization
and the overall price drop in the light passenger vehicle market, China’s
passenger vehicle market reported a sales figure of 558,900 units
(including models of incomplete set passenger vehicles), representing a
growth of 10.2%. Albeit the overall positive market trend, substantial
drop was observed in the sales volume of large-sized passenger vehicles
of 12 meters due to the restricted grant of approvals for long-distance
passenger lines and a share of the transportation market having been
taken up by China’s national express rail and accordingly exerting an
impact on the Company’s auxiliary sales volume of 10-liter diesel
engines. Under such influence, the Company’s aggregate sales of
engines for use in passenger vehicles amounted to 21,000 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.3%, and accounting for
12.3% of the market share of the medium-sized and large-sized
passenger vehicles, representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.9%.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Company adjusted its product mix
based on the latest market development, and led the trend of the
market with its technological renovations, thereby maintained a trend of
sound and swift development. In 2013, the Company reported a sales
figure of 378,700 units of 10L, 12L and 13L engines, representing a
year-on-year growth of 26.3%, further consolidating its leading position
of heavy-duty engine products in the heavy-duty truck market and the
market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes. The
Company’s self-researched and self-developed “Landking” WP5 and
WP7 engines, to which it owns intellectual property rights, reported sales
volume of more than 10,000 units, representing a year-on-year growth
of 39.8%. Re-built engines reported an annual sales figure of 11,200
units, representing a year-on-year growth of 28.1%, maintaining the
leading position in the industry. For M26 engines, the domestic
production scheme came to completion and brought the annual sales to
152 units. This demonstrated the more prominent competitive
advantages of the Group's integrated engine products and its wider
prospects of development.

During the reporting period, the Company remained committed to its
scientific approach for development which is uniquely distinct for
Weichai. It steadfastly underwent its development under the notion of
“Grow organically and drive by innovation”. Renovation and innovation
were adopted as the key to the Company’s cohesive power and
problem-solving, thereby boosting the Company’s steady and healthy
development.

Firstly, the Company has been persistently uplifting its capability in
research and innovation. The Company was awarded a National Grade I
Award for Technological Advancement in respect of its “Landking”
WP10/WP12 projects. The Company also succeeded in its self-research
and self-development of WN20, as well as “S-gearbox”, which are new-
energy-mixed power chain products for use in buses. The project of
“Modulation of Mixed Power Chain for General Commercial Vehicles
and Construction Machinery” (i@ P B9 79 F3 B2 62 T 72 # A= 48 1
JE A B) 1 48 5)) under China’s National Technology Support Program
(B R ® £ & # 5t &) has completed, and has entered the inspection
stage. In addition, inspection has been completed and approved in
respect of the National Technology & Engineering Research Centre for
Power Chain System in Commercial Vehicles (B X B /SE & H XK
48k T2 B 1T B 95 & 0), by the Ministry of Science and
Technology (&l # #B). All these have contributed to the further
strengthening of the Company’s capability in technological research and
development.
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Secondly, the management standard has been uplifted. The
implementation of the “Organization Innovative Projects” has motivated
staff members in their work. The trial-run for the mechanism of
“Production Volume by Teams and Wages by Day” was successfully
implemented, thereby enhancing the management level and production
efficiency of factories. “Implementation of Betterment Initiatives”
campaign was duly launched, instilling the notion of betterment to staff
members and enabling more efficient operations of the enterprise.

Thirdly, the geographical distribution of production was further
optimized. The production and casting of high-speed machines was
gradually conducted at High Technology Industrial Park (&#TE 3 H),
Hanting (32%) and Angiu Industrial Park (ZEZEZE) on a close-loop
basis, thereby centralizing the geographical distribution of production
and substantially uplifting the Company’s operational efficiency.

Fourthly, the Company’s international development was expedited. Its
support to KION's successful listing on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange; its
strategic cooperation with Ferrari’s Formula One team; and participation
in the Bauma Conexpo in India and product fair in Indonesia have
substantially enhanced the recognition, reputation and influential power
for and of Weichai Power as an international brand.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by
approximately 21.07% over the same period of 2012 to approximately
RMB58,312 million. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the
listed company was approximately RMB3,571 million, representing an
increase of approximately 19.38% over the same period of 2012. The
basic earnings per share was approximately RMB1.79, representing an
increase of approximately 19.33% over the same period of 2012.

DIVIDENDS

Putting shareholders’ interests and return as its top priority, the
Company has maintained a relatively stable dividend policy. On 28
March 2014, the Company’'s 2013 profit distribution proposal was
approved by the Company’s 5th meeting of the third session of the
Board: the Company proposed to distribute a cash dividend of RMB1.50
for every 10 shares (including tax), based on the total share capital of
1,999,309,639 shares. Completion of the proposal is subject to the
consideration and approval by the 2013 Annual General Meeting. Please
refer to the further announcement to be issued by the Company for
details on the closure of registers of members in determining the
shareholders who are eligible for the final dividend.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

I1I.

IV.

ACQUISITION AND CONSOLIDATION

In June 2013, the Company supported the successful listing of KION
Group AG (“KION") on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany and
by exercising a call option to subscribe for new shares in KION (the
“KION Call Option”), the Company acquired additional shares in KION
so that its shareholding increased to 30% of KION's total issued share
capital upon KION’s listing. Through the third extraordinary general
meeting in 2013 and the seventh board meeting in 2013, the resolutions
in respect of the exercise of Superlift 3.3% call option was approved. Up
to January 2014, the Company is the holder of 33.3% of KION's total
issued share capital.

QUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Into 2014, we are anticipating both opportunities and challenges. On a
global perspective, the world economy will continue with its trend of
slow recovery. It is expected that the annual GDP growth will be around
3.7% and developed countries will once again become the major drivers
of the global economic growth. Instability and uncertainty will
nevertheless continue to exist, and the source of such new growth
remains ambiguous.

In China, the Third Plenary Session of the 18th Central Committee of the
Communist Party kicked start the comprehensive intensified reform of
the country. With the slight improvement of external environment, full-
scale commencement of internal reforms, and the determination of
macroeconomic policies, it is expected that China will continue with its
medium to high speed of economic growth with progress while
maintaining stability which will deliver improvements in both quality and
effectiveness in year 2014, and that GDP growth will be around 7.5%
on a full-year basis. The Central Urbanization Conference has pinpointed
the direction for construction of new towns and will continue to drive
infrastructure construction and property development in China, release
consumption potentials, and bestow favorable strategic opportunities
upon the Company. Having said that, the Company will encounter a lot
of challenges in the course of its development, as China’s economy is
undergoing a critical moment of upgrading and transformation and the
economic conditions are therefore subject to uncertainties to a certain
extent.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of its
related industries. In 2014, the heavy-duty truck industry is poised to
continue with its rebounding track, which is primarily attributable to
favorable factors including the following: firstly, the expedited
urbanization, whereby investments in the construction of municipal
infrastructure, rail transportation, express rail etc. will increase, which
will in turn continue to drive the demand for heavy-duty trucks;
secondly, implementation of policies on the control over yellow-label (i.e.
highly polluting) vehicles and mandatory retirement of vehicles etc. will

=
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further stimulate the sales volume of heavy-duty trucks; thirdly, the
heavy-duty truck industry will enter a new round of retirement and
replacement phase, which, together with the swift development of the
logistics industry, will further drive the growth of demand for heavy-duty
trucks.

With regard to the construction machinery industry, the steady
implementation of resolutions of the Third Plenary Session of the 18th
Central Committee of the Communist Party and the Central Economic
Conference, the ongoing positive development of various areas including
express rail, highways, railways, municipal rail transports as well as
construction of municipal facilities will provide favorable opportunities
for fostering the recovery of the market of construction machinery.
According to the latest data released by the Ministry of Railways of the
PRC, the amount of planned investment budget in fixed assets in the
railway sector is RMB630 billion in 2014, which will generate
momentum to drive the development of the construction machinery
industry. In addition, factors including the expedited transformation and
upgrading of the construction machinery industry and the increased
demand in the sub-market of agricultural machinery will also provide
strong support for driving the growth of the industry. Generally
speaking, the construction machinery industry will continue to maintain
its trend of modest recovery in 2014.

To date, while the schedule for the nationwide implementation of China
IV Emission Standards is yet to be clarified, these new standards are
already duly in force in many regions. Leveraging on our advanced
technology, large-scale and high quality production, synergy presented
by the availability of global resources and our strong loyal customer
base, we have advantage in the preparation for meeting China IV
Emission Standards and will maintain our leading position in the market
of high-power engines, heavy-duty gear boxes and complete heavy-duty
vehicles. The Board has full confidence in the development prospect of
the Company.

In 2014, the Company will work strenuously on the following: firstly, we
will focus on our products and build our core competence in terms of
cost, technology and quality, making ourselves an outstanding market
player. On such foundation, we will expedite the implementation of a
diversified market strategic deployment and launch of strategic products,
enhance our quality of service in the market, and consolidate our leading
position in the industry. Secondly, we will step up our investments in
research and development, thereby further expediting the establishment
of platforms for new products and research and development of key and
core technologies and enhancing the company’s capability in self-
innovation. Thirdly, we will steadfastly push forward our cost reduction
efforts. We will focus on the full-scale detailed management in different
stages including procurement, design, processes and manufacturing, in
order to identify room for reduction of costs and enhancement of
profitability. Fourthly, we will foster management reforms and
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

innovation, thereby further streamlining the management relationship,
optimizing systems and processes, boosting control over specific
positions, establishing an all-staff performance management system
which is strategy-driven, position-based and performance-linked, with a
view to enhancing the operations efficiency of the enterprise. Fifthly, we
will expedite the implementation of the business model in the after-sales
market. By means of our reinforced marketing efforts, enhanced
catalogue for after-sales electronic components (SBOM), establishment
of an inventory management system and coordinated platform for the
sale of electronic components, and the establishment of a component
distribution centre, we will create new profit points for the Company.
Regarding the segment of heavy-duty trucks, we will gear up in
developing our new generation products with differentiated competitive
strengths as represented by the M series and heavy-duty trucks driven by
natural gas, while forming new marketing approaches, in order to get
prepared for subsequent growth. Companies producing gear boxes will
focus on producing products which are light-weighted, automated and
multi-gear, further fostering the series-based research and development
of the "S-gearbox”, in order to form a platform for new-generation
gearboxes for machinery. For the components segment, we will continue
to intensify our research and innovation, enhance core competence of
our products and take full advantage of the synergy between the
component business segment and the engine business segment.

At the same time, we will continue to further establish the mentality of
international development. Under the principle of “unified strategy,
independent operation, resources sharing”, we will gradually streamline
the mechanism for the control over overseas companies, change from
cross-border acquisition to cross-border operation, coordinate the needs
for expanding the domestic and international markets and international
business development, accelerate the coordinated development of our
business in complete vehicles, power chains, hydraulics controlling parts
and other automobile components, in order to fully utilize the synergetic
advantage of the brands, technology, resources and management of the
domestic and overseas companies, continue to enhance the quality of
the Company’s development, and boost the overall capability to manage
risks.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere appreciation to all our shareholders, the general public and our
customers for their care and support, as well as all of our staff for their
hard work and dedication in the past year!

Tan Xuguang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the annual results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 as follows:

I.

14

INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of high-power and
high-speed diesel engines in the PRC and a leading company in the
power chain market. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply
chain of engines, gear boxes and axles.

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry

During the year, under the stabilizing macroeconomic conditions
and its modest recovery and also the steadily uprising track of the
general economy, the gross domestic product of the PRC was
RMB56.88 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.7%.
Favorable factors including the continual rebound of fixed asset
investment, the expected implementation of China IV Emission
Standards leading to a new generation and replacement process,
swift development of the logistics industry and the completion of
the destocking process in the industry in the past two years,
contribute to the recovery of the heavy-duty truck industry. The
aggregate sales figure of the heavy-duty truck market in the year
in the PRC was 774,100 units, representing a year-on-year
increase of 21.7%.

2. Construction Machinery

During the year, the construction machinery industry
demonstrated slight improvements but was yet to come up from
its trough. The aggregate sales figure of the PRC's construction
machinery market was approximately 705,000 units, representing
a year-on-year increase of 3.9%. In particular, 111,000 units of
wheel loaders with load capacity of 5 tonnes were sold,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.4%. During 2013, with
an aggregate investment amount of RMB43.65 trillion, the fixed
asset investment in the PRC recorded a year-on-year increase of
19.6%, which pace was still approximately 1 percentage point
lower than in 2012. In particular, the total planned investments on
newly-commenced projects amounted to RMB35.78 trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.2%. Investment in real
estate developments was RMB8.6 trillion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 19.8%, which pace was slightly faster than in
2012.
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operating conditions of the major products of the Group: SUEL A AR

IT. THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note X.3 of
the Notes to Financial Statements. The following is an overview of the

Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

The Group is the largest supplier of diesel engines among major
manufacturers of heavy-duty trucks with a load capacity of 15
tonnes (and above) in the PRC. Benefiting from the substantial
growth of sales of the heavy-duty truck market in the PRC, out of
diesel engines sold during the year, approximately 280,000 units
were heavy-duty truck diesel engines (2012: approximately
207,500 units), representing an increase of approximately 34.9%
as compared to the corresponding period of 2012. The Group
accounted for approximately 36.2% (2012: approximately 32.6%)
of the market of heavy-duty trucks with a gross weight of above
14 tonnes, maintaining the leading position in the industry.

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines among
major manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel
loaders) with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. Out of the
diesel engines sold during the year, approximately 72,500 units
were engines for wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes
(2012: approximately 62,600 units), representing an increase of
approximately 15.9% compared to that in the corresponding
period of 2012. According to the data released by the China
Construction Machinery Network (B Ti2##{z E548), the
Company’s market share in the market of wheel loaders with a
load capacity of 5 tonnes reached up to 65.3%, maintaining the
Company’s leading position in this sector.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the year, the Group sold approximately 85,800 units of
heavy-duty trucks, representing an increase of approximately 6.6%
from approximately 80,500 units recorded for the corresponding
period of 2012. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (B
HEAREAR AR, a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
reported a sales figure which ranked the fifth in the domestic
heavy-duty truck industry. Prior to intra-group elimination, the
truck business contributed approximately RMB24,562 million to
the Group's revenue this year.
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3. Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes
During the year, the Group sold approximately 565,700 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
25.2% compared to approximately 452,000 units of heavy-duty
gear boxes sold in the corresponding period of 2012, further
consolidating its leading position in the industry. Prior to intra-
group elimination, the gear boxes business contributed
approximately RMB8,282 million to the Group’s revenue this year.

4. Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and Heavy-
duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling Parts
Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and sales
of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. Through the
acquisition of shares of KION and 70% shares of Linde Hydraulics
GmbH & Co. KG, the Company entered the globally leading high-
end hydraulics sector. During this year, the Group’s sales of parts
and components of engines and trucks and hydraulics controlling
parts were approximately RMB3,970 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 86.5% or an increase of
approximately RMB1,841 million, compared to the sales revenue
of RMB2,129 million in the corresponding period in last year.

Last year, the Company budgeted sales revenue in 2013 would be
approximately RMB55.3 billion, representing a growth of approximately
15%. The actual sales revenue was approximately RMB58.3 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 21.07%. Actual
sales revenue exceeded the budgeted sales revenue by approximately
RMB3 billion or 5.4%, which was mainly attributable to the substantial
sales growth in the PRC’s heavy-duty truck market, the rebound in
infrastructural construction and investment in real estate development in
the PRC, which drove up the demand for heavy-duty trucks for
construction purposes. And with the swift development of the logistics
industry, as driven by the growth in demand for transportation and the
demand for replacements of old heavy-duty trucks with new ones,
therefore, the demand for new truck purchases had been released.

As of 31 December 2013, the orders in the hands of the Company was
approximately RMB2.9 billion, including approximately 8,000 units of
diesel engines, approximately 6,000 heavy-duty trucks and approximately
52,000 units of heavy-duty gear boxes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Company budgets a sales revenue of approximately RMB64.1 billion
and an increase of approximately 10% for the year of 2014. In 2014,
the heavy-duty truck industry is poised to continue with its rebounding
track, which is primarily attributable to favorable factors including the
following: firstly, the expedited urbanization, whereby investments in the
construction of municipal infrastructure, rail transportation, express rail
etc. will increase, which will in turn continue to drive the demand for
heavy-duty trucks; secondly, implementation of policies on the control
over yellow-label (i.e. highly polluting) vehicles, implementation of China
IV Emission Standards and mandatory retirement of vehicles etc. will
further stimulate the sales volume of heavy-duty trucks; thirdly, the
heavy-duty truck industry will enter a new round of retirement and
replacement of vehicles; fourthly, the swift development of the logistics
industry will lead to increased demand for transportation, which will in
turn further drive the growth in demand for heavy-duty trucks.

For the market of construction machinery, the ongoing positive
development of various areas including express rail, highways, railways,
municipal rail transports as well as construction of municipal facilities will
provide favorable opportunities for fostering the recovery of the market
of construction machinery. According to the latest data released by the
Ministry of Railways of the PRC, the amount of planned investment in
fixed assets in the railway sector is RMB630 billion in 2014, which will
generate momentum to drive the development of the construction
machinery industry. In addition, factors including the expedited
transformation and upgrading of the construction machinery industry
and the increased demand in the sub-market of agricultural machinery
will also provide strong support for driving the growth of the industry.

III. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1. The Group's Results of Operations
a. Revenue
The Group’'s revenue increased from approximately
RMB48,165 million in the corresponding period of 2012 to
approximately RMB58,312 million in the year, representing
an increase of approximately 21.07%. It was mainly
attributable to the recovery of China’s general economy,
rebound of fixed asset investments and the swift
development of the logistics industry. In particular, the
revenue from principal operations increased by
approximately 21.97%, from approximately RMB45,884
million in the corresponding period of 2012 to
approximately RMB55,963 million in the year, which was
mainly attributable to the substantial increase in the sales of
the heavy-duty truck market and the sales contribution of
the hydraulics controlling parts segment of the Group.
During this year, the Group sold a total of approximately
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280,000 units of diesel engines for use in heavy-duty trucks,
representing a substantial increase of approximately 34.9%,
when compared to approximately 207,500 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2012. During this year, the Group
sold a total of approximately 72,500 units of engines for use
in wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes,
representing an increase of approximately 15.9%, when
compared to approximately 62,600 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2012. During this year, Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (PG ERTEFR A
7)) recorded an aggregate sales of approximately 85,800
units of heavy-duty trucks, representing an increase of
approximately 6.6%, when compared to the corresponding
period last year.

Other revenue increased slightly by approximately 2.98%,
from approximately RMB2,281 million in the corresponding
period of 2012 to approximately RMB2,349 million for this
year.

Profit from Principal Operations

During this year, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB11,807
million, representing an increase of approximately 28.07%
as compared to approximately RMB9,219 million recorded
in the corresponding period of 2012. The Group's efforts in
optimizing product portfolio and the ongoing adjustment of
product structure have highlighted the competitiveness of
its product portfolio, contributing to the increase of profit
margin of principal operations to approximately 21.10%,
which was an increase of more than 1 percentage point
from 20.09% recorded in the corresponding period of
2012.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
29.56% to approximately RMB3,153 million this year from
approximately RMB2,433 million in the corresponding
period of 2012. The distribution and selling expenses as a
percentage of revenue increased from approximately 5.05%
in the corresponding period of 2012 to approximately
5.41% in this year. It was mainly attributable to the Group’s
enhanced efforts in market expansion and the increased
sales volume, which have contributed to the higher market
expansion expenses and after-sales service charges.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses of the Group increased
by approximately 19.29% or approximately RMB624 million
from approximately RMB3,233 million in the corresponding
period of 2012 to approximately RMB3,856 million this year.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in the costs on
administrative staff in the course of the Group’s
international development.

Operating Profit before Finance Expenses

During this year, the Group’s operating profit before finance
expenses increased substantially by approximately 25.99%
to approximately RMB4,673 million this year from
approximately RMB3,709 million in the corresponding
period of 2012. During this year, the Group’s operating
profit margin was approximately 8.01%, which represented
a slight increase of approximately 7.70% in the
corresponding period of 2012.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses changed from net finance income of
approximately RMB10 million in the corresponding period of
2012 to net finance expenses of approximately RMB217
million this year. This change was mainly attributable to the
substantial increase in interest expenses by an increase in
Euro-denominated long-term borrowings used for the
investments in KION Group AG and Linde Hydraulics GmbH
& Co. KG as well as an issue of RMB800 million medium-
term notes by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited;
and the exchange loss incurred.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by
approximately 9.04% from approximately RMB726 million
in the corresponding period of 2012 to approximately
RMB791 million in the year. During this year, the Group’s
average effective tax rate was approximately 17.17%,
compared to approximately 18.32% in the corresponding
period of 2012. The improvement in effective tax rate was
mainly due to a decrease in deferred tax this year.
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Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’'s net profit for this year increased by
approximately 18.04% from approximately RMB3,234
million in the corresponding period of 2012 to
approximately RMB3,818 million this year. During this year,
the net profit margin was approximately 6.55%,
representing a slight decrease from approximately 6.71%
recorded in the corresponding period of 2012.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During this year, the Group generated cash flow from
operating activities of approximately RMB5,768 million and
cash flow from financing activities of approximately RMB695
million. A portion of such cash proceeds were applied in
paying investment monies and for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment for the expansion of the
Group's business. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
net cash (cash and cash equivalents net of interest-bearing
debts) of approximately RMB2,359 million (as at 31
December 2012: the Group had a net cash (cash and cash
equivalents net of interest-bearing debts) of approximately
RMB1,981 million). Based on the calculation above, the debt
to equity ratio was not applicable to the Group as the
Group was in a net cash position (as at 31 December 2012:
N/A).

2. Financial Position

a.

WEICHAI PoweErR Co., LTD.

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in
Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
December 2010, Mainland incorporated issuers listed in
Hong Kong shall be allowed to prepare their financial
statements using China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises. As such, in the 2010 annual general meeting of
the Company held on 18 May 2011, it was resolved that
with effect from 2011, the Company would only adopt
Mainland accounting standards in its preparation of financial
statements and would no longer use Hong Kong accounting
standards at the same time in preparing financial
statements. The Company does not consider that the
adoption of China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises in its preparation of the financial statements has
any material financial impact on the Group.
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Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB78,522 million, of which approximately
RMB48,050 million were current assets. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB19,580 million (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB16,727 million). On the same date, the Group’s total
liabilities was approximately RMB44,194 million, of which
approximately RMB29,298 million were current liabilities.
The current ratio was approximately 1.64x (as at 31
December 2012: 1.64x).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB34,327 million, of which approximately
RMB27,723 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority equity holders’
interests. The Group currently does not rely heavily on
borrowings. The borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB14,238
million, which included bonds of approximately RMB3,494
million and bank borrowings of approximately RMB10,744
million. The bank borrowings included approximately
RMB10,576 million of fixed interest rate bank borrowings
and approximately RMB168 million of floating interest rate
bank borrowings. Other than approximately RMB8,983
million worth and approximately RMB17 million worth
borrowings which are denominated in Euro and US dollars
respectively, the remaining borrowings are in Renminbi. As
the revenue of the Group is mainly in Renminbi, and the
Euro-denominated borrowings are mainly used for the
acquisition of the respective equity interests in KION and
Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, the Group does not
consider its currency risk significant. However, the
management will monitor its currency risk and will consider
to hedge significant currency risk where necessary. As a
policy, the Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to shareholders through
improving the debts and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged compared to prior years.

b.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits and notes
receivable of approximately RMB5,146 million (as at 31
December 2012: approximately RMB2,922 million) were
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s notes payable and
notes receivable issued by banks. The pledged bank deposits
carry prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge will be
released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits as at the
settlement date is approximately the same as the carrying
amount. Certain other assets were also pledged by the
Group to secure the Group's borrowings.

Contingencies

On 31 December 2013, the Group provided to certain
distributors and agents bank guarantee amounting to
approximately RMB732 million (as at 31 December 2012:
approximately RMB785 million) to secure their obtaining
and use of banking facilities.

On 31 December 2013, the Group provided guarantee for
joint liabilities in respect of the failure of the lessee under
finance lease to settle instalment payments plus interest.
Possible risk exposure in respect of the guarantee for joint
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB1,193 million (as
at 31 December 2012: approximately RMB586 million).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB933 million (as at 31
December 2012: approximately RMB1,668 million), among
which contracted capital commitments amounted to
approximately RMB933 million, principally for the capital
expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no investment
commitments contracted but not provided for (as at 31
December 2012: nil).

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSTS (CONTINUED)

3. Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had approximately
41,000 employees. During this year, the Group had paid
remuneration of approximately RMB4,491 million. The
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merits, qualifications and competence.

During the year, the Group organized over 2,000 training
courses for various departments and employees at various
levels, incurring training expenses of approximately RMB27
million in total.

Major Investment

During the reporting period, Weichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.l., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
exercised in full a call option to subscribe for 13,682,500
new shares in KION Group AG, at a consideration of
Euro328,380,000 based on a price of Euro24 per share. By
exercising the call option, the Company’s shareholding in
KION Group AG increased to 30% of the total share capital
of KION Group AG upon the listing of the shares of KION
Group AG.

Major Acquisition and Disposal
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any major
acquisition or disposal during this year.
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Mr. Tan Xuguang, Chinese, aged 52, is the chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, chairman of Shandong Heavy Industry
Group Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (which
holds A Shares of the Company in the amount as set out below and is
thus interested in shares of the Company under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance) and chairman of Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
Co., Ltd. He is also the chairman of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company
Limited and Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., and the supervisor of KION
Group AG. Mr. Tan joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1977 and
had held various positions including chairman and general manager of
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd., general manager of
Weifang Diesel Engine Factory and chairman of Torch Automobile Group
Co., Ltd. Mr. Tan is a senior economist and holds a doctor’s degree in
engineering. Mr. Tan was appointed as a Representative of the Tenth,
Eleventh and Twelfth National People’s Congress of the PRC and was
honored “National Labor Model”, "SENERTEPEEIELE" (the
Gold Award of the 4th Yuan Baohua Enterprise Management), “CCTV
2005 China Economic Annual Figure” and “CCTV 2010 China Economic
Annual Figure”.

Mr. Xu Xinyu, Chinese, aged 50, is an Executive Director and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Xu joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory
in 1986 and had held the positions of deputy general manager of
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd., deputy general manager
and executive deputy general manager of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory,
director of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. and chairman of Weichai
Power (Weifang) Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu is currently a director of
Weichai Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Xu is a senior economist and holds
a bachelor’s degree in science and a MBA degree.

Mr. Li Dakai, Chinese, aged 60, is an Executive Director and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Li had held various positions including
director of product design department, chief economist, general
manager of Shaanxi Auto Gear General Works, director and vice
president of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd., and director and general
manager of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co. Ltd.. He currently holds the positions
of chairman and party committee secretary of Shaanxi Fast Gear
Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. and vice chairman of Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd. Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree and is a senior engineer
with researcher-grade treatment. He was honored “National Labor
Model” and entitled specialist who can receive special allowance from
the State Council. Mr. Li was appointed as a Representative of the
Eleventh National People’s Congress of the PRC and member of the
Standing Committee of Xi‘an Municipal People’s Congress.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD
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Mr. Fang Hongwei, Chinese, aged 47, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. He had held the positions of
section chief of test technology section of motor research institute,
deputy director of financial department, deputy general manager,
general manager of sales company and executive deputy general
manager of Shaanxi Automobile Manufactory, and general manager of
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited. Mr. Fang is now the
chairman of Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. and the vice chairman
of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited. Mr. Fang is a senior
economist and holds a master’s degree in engineering and the senior
career manager certification of machinery industrial corporation.

Mr. Sun Shaojun, Chinese, aged 48, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. Mr. Sun joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1988 and had held the positions of supervisor of the
engineering department, the chief engineer of Weifang Diesel Engine
Factory, and director of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun is
currently a director of Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Weichai
Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun is a researcher-grade senior
engineer and holds a doctor degree in engineering. He was appointed as
UEEARBARILEEREHER" (Taishan Mountain scholar
specialist appointed by Shandong People’s Government).

Mr. Zhang Quan, Chinese, aged 50, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1986 and had held the positions of directors of the
quality control department and the marketing department of Weifang
Diesel Engine Factory. Mr. Zhang is currently a director of Weichai Group
Holdings Limited and Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang
is a senior economist and holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering and a
MBA degree.

Mr. Chen Xuejian, Chinese, aged 58, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He had held various positions including the director of
Weifang Accounting Firm, deputy director of Local Taxation Bureau of
Weifang and deputy director of Finance Bureau of Weifang. Mr. Chen is
now the chairman of Weifang Investment Company, chairman of ghiZ/)s
BEITRMNABER AT (Yongda Micro-credit Co., Ltd.), vice chairman of
EEHHBEEAR A A (Huadian Weifang Power Co., Ltd.), vice
chairman of FOTON Lovol Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. He is a senior
accountant and representative of the fifteenth and sixteenth sessions of
the National People’s Congress of Weifang.

Mr. Yeung Sai Hong, Chinese, aged 59, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company and the chairman of Peterson Holdings Company Limited
which is a promoter of the Company. He is also a standing committee
member of the 10th Shandong Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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Mr. Julius G. Kiss, Austrian, aged 86, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is the chairman of IVM Technical Consultants Wien GmbH,
which is a promoter of the Company.

Ms. Han Xiaoqun, Chinese, aged 63, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Han is the chairman of ||ER&EMPEEELLRMNHERA
7] (Shandong Provincial Enterprises Trusteeship & Operation Co., Ltd.),
which is a promoter of the Company.

Mr. Jiang Kui, Chinese, aged 49, appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 29 June 2012. He had held various positions
including engineer and deputy general manager of Assembly
Department of Shandong Bulldozer General Factory (LLIZE#H# + 448 ),
deputy general manager of Shantui Import and Export Company (LLIHE#
H A2 7)), deputy director, director of manufacturing department and
deputy general manager of Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd. (L1
HE TR AR 5 B PR A F)), deputy general manager of Shandong
Engineering Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (UE TE#EHEBABR A7)
and executive deputy general manager of Weichai Group Holdings
Limited. He is now the general manager and director of Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Co., Ltd., vice chairman of Weichai Group Holdings
Limited, director of Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd. (|Li# T2
W% 5 BBRAF]) and chairman of Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd. (LS54
ABR/A7]). He is also a supervisor of KION Group AG. He is a senior
engineer and holds a MBA degree.

Mr. Gordon Riske, American/German, aged 56, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 24 June 2013. He has been chief
executive officer of KUKA Roboter GmbH, chairman of Deutz AG in
Cologne, Germany. He is currently the chief executive officer of KION
Group AG and KION Material Handling GmbH. He holds a bachelor
degree in business administration.

Mr. Liu Zheng, Chinese, aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu had held the positions of section chief,
deputy director of the Weifang Audit Bureau (45T Est/E). He was
the general manager of Weifang Investment Company and he retired in
February 2004. He is now an independent director of Weichai
Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. He is a senior economist and a certified
public accountant. He graduated from |LERALHEERE (Shandong
Economics College) majoring in auditing.

Mr. Li Shihao, Chinese, aged 73, retired in February 2001, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is an
independent director of EINRAZ AEZEFRMHER AT (Songz
Automobile Air Conditioning Co., Ltd) and 5N a8 & BB (5 AR A &)
(Yangzhou Yaxing Motor Coach Co. Ltd.).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Loh Yih, Singaporean, aged 49, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He worked in Ernst
& Young and West Merchant Bank and had held various positions
including senior manager of capital market investment department of
the Standard Chartered Merchant Bank, president of Netplus
Communications Pte Ltd. He is currently a partner of MGF Capital
Group, an independent director and chairman of audit committee of
Ban Leong Technologies Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
the Singapore Exchange, and an independent director and member of
audit committee of International Press Softcom Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange. He is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and holds an accounting degree from the National
University of Singapore.

Mr. Chu, Howard Ho Hwa, Chinese (Hong Kong), aged 49, appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 June
2012. He had held various positions including director of ABN AMRO
Asia Corporate Finance Limited (R7ESgE & 28MARAR]), joint CEO of
Myrice.com, a director of HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited, consultant of
Shanghai Century Acquisition Corporation, assistant to chairman of
United Energy Group Limited, chief financial officer of Trony Solar
Holdings Co. Ltd, and chief financial officer of China Smart Electric
Group Limited. He is now the chief executive officer of mReferral
Mortgage Brokerage Services Co. Ltd and the independent non-
executive director of Directel Holdings Limited. He obtained his
bachelor’s degree of Electrical Engineering from University of Rochester,
New York and his master's degree of business administration from
Columbia University.

Mr. Zhang Zhenhua, Chinese, aged 71, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He had held
various positions including chief engineer of Bt 74 /5 B &L i 5 (Shaanxi
Automobile Manufactory), deputy chief engineer of #1 [ & % }5 & &
= A 7] (China National Heavy Duty Truck Group Corp. Ltd.), supervisor
of technical centre and technical department manager of ;& 358 T
¥ (£ 8) 2 A (Shanghai Automotive Industrial (Group) Company),
general manager (Chinese Representative) of 5 25 35 & & fif /1 0> B R
7~ A] (Pan Asia Technical Automotive Centre Co. Ltd), consultant of
7R 3 Bl E #1l7 7R 0 (Shanghai Automotive Passenger Car Technical
Centre) and a consultant of commercial vehicle department and
consultant of technical centre of SAIC, etc. He is now the supervisor of
Advisory Committee of Shanghai Automotive Industry Science and
Technology Development Foundation, a director of Shanghai Automotive
Engineering Association, a member of FE AEHEHREE S
(Expert Committee of the China Association of Automobile) and a
member of panel of judges for /F J5 &} 5 # & 2% E) (China Automotive
Industry Science and Technology Progress Award). He graduated from
Tsinghua University with a degree majoring in automotive. He is a
professor engineer, a professor and a Ph.D. tutor of Tongji University
and a professor and master tutor of University of Shanghai for Science &
Technology.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISOR B EELSRERAS (8)

Mr. Li Luwen, Chinese, aged 61, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He had held
various positions including deputy director of Angiu Municipal Office,
State Administration of Tax (“SAT”), Shandong Province, director of
Weifang Municipal Office, SAT, director of Tax Bureau of Shandong
Province and Shandong Provincial Office, SAT, director of Weihai
Municipal office, SAT, director of Jinan Municipal Office, SAT and a
deputy director and monitor (retired) of Shandong Provincial Office, SAT.
He is a certified tax agent and a university graduate.

(2) SUPERVISORS

Mr. Sun Chengping, Chinese, aged 66, is the Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company. He joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1969 and was the deputy general manager of Weifang
Diesel Engine Factory, supervisor of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd,
and director and general manager of Weichai Group Holdings Limited.
He is now a supervisor of Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. Mr.
Sun is a senior economist and holds a junior college’s degree.

Mr. Lu Wenwu, Chinese, aged 49, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Lu joined Weichai Diesel Engine Factory in 1982 and had held various
positions at Weichai Diesel Engine Factory as deputy general manager of
the 615 Factory and deputy director of human resources and re-
employment department, and at Weichai Power Co., Ltd. as general
manager of the 615 Factory, general manager of No. 1 Factory and
director of the production department. He is now chairman of the Labor
Union and director of the party committee working department of the
Company, and director of staff career development centre of the
Company. He is also a supervisor of Weichai Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. Lu is a senior political engineer and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Ms. Jiang Jianfang, Chinese, aged 51, is a Supervisor of the Company.
She was the deputy chief of the financial audit committee, deputy
director of risk control department of EFE#HI TEE AR AT (Guangxi
Liugong Group Company Limited) and is currently and deputy director of
audit department of the same company. She is a supervisor of EFE#l T
A% 5 B BR A T (Guangxi Liugong Machinery Company Limited). Ms.
Jiang is an accountant.
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(3) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhang Fusheng, Chinese, aged 56, is an Executive President of the
Company. Ms. Zhang joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1975 and
had held the positions of director of financial department, and chief
accountant of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, and director and vice
president of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. She is also a director of
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd., vice general manager of
Weichai Group Holdings Limited and director of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
She is now a director of Weichai Group Holdings Limited. Ms. Zhang is a
senior accountant and Certified Public Accountant and holds the
qualification of senior manager of international financial and a master’s
degree.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong, Chinese, aged 47, is the Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary and Authorised Representative of the
Company. Mr. Kwong joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Kwong
obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Morrison Hill Technical
Institute in Hong Kong in 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He has worked for companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over 25
years' experience in the accounting and financial management fields.

Mr. Dai Lixin, Chinese, aged 46, is the Secretary to the Board and
Director of Securities department of the Company. He joined Weifang
Diesel Engine Factory in 1987 and was the deputy director of the
treasury department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory. Mr. Dai is an
economist and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. Feng Gang, Chinese, aged 49, is a Vice President of the Company.
He was manager of technology service department, assistant to general
manager and executive deputy general manager of sales department of
the head office and executive deputy director of marketing management
department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory etc. He is an engineer and
holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Mr. Tong Dehui, Chinese, aged 49, is a Vice President and Deputy
Chief Engineer of the Company. He was the supervisor, assistant
supervisor and research-grade senior engineer of the laboratory of
engineering department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory. Mr. Tong
holds a doctor’s degree in engineering and was appointed as “[LIE& A
RHFZHRILEZEFEER" (Taishan Mountain scholar specialist
appointed by Shandong People’s Government).
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SORS'AND SENTOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Zhou Chongyi, Chinese, aged 49, is a Vice President of the
Company and the director of the Company’s Shanghai R&D Centre. He
is also the deputy general manager of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd. He was the deputy supervisor of engineering department, deputy
chief engineer of China National Heavy Duty Truck Group Corp, Ltd. and
deputy chief engineer of Shanghai Huizhong Automobile Manufacturing
Co. Ltd. Mr. Zhou is a senior engineer and holds an EMBA.

Mr. Qian Cheng, American, aged 51, is a Vice President of the
Company. He was the senior project engineer of engineering
department of Caterpillar in the USA, senior project manager of North
America engineering department of Ricardo in the UK, senior design
engineer of product research and development — chassis department of
Ford Motor Company in the USA, senior project engineer of product
design center of General Motors in the USA, vice president and director
of international business department of Torch Automobile Group Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Qian graduated with a doctor’'s degree from University of
Kentucky.

Mr. Li Shaohua, Chinese, aged 48, is a Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Company in 1987 and had held various positions
including the deputy general manager of the marketing department of
the head office, director of application engineering department and
assistant to president. He is a senior engineer and holds a bachelor’s
degree in engineering.

Ms. Ren Bingbing, Chinese, aged 48, is a Vice President of the
Company. Ms. Ren joined the Company in 1987 and had held various
positions including the deputy general manager of procurement
management department and assistant to president of the Company.
She is a senior economist and holds a master’s degree in economics.

Mr. Ding Yingdong, Chinese, aged 45, is a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Ding joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1990 and
had held various positions including deputy director of corporate
planning department and director of human resources department of
Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, director of human resources department,
director of corporate management department and a supervisor of
Weichai Power Co., Limited, and supervisor of Weichai Group Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ding is a senior economist and holds the qualification of
senior manager of corporate human resources and a bachelor’s degree
in engineering.
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DIRECTORS  REPORT

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the manufacture and sale of diesel
engines and related parts, automobiles and other major automobile
components, minor automobile components and import and export services.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes IV.1 and V.11 to the financial statements,
respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 81 to 354. The Board recommended the
payment of a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) per every ten shares
held by the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2013. This recommendation has been disclosed as a subsequent event after
the reporting period on page 311 in the financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
pages 355 to 356. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in Note V.14 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in Note V.13 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note V.39 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Notes V.40 to 43 to the financial statements and in the
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations, amounted to
RMB20,387,002,703. As approved by the Board on 28 March 2014, the
Company proposed to distribute a cash dividend of RMB1.50 for every 10
shares (including tax) held by the shareholders.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
approximately RMB14,496,539.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS EERES
The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to the RAFERBEARSAY  ARFAESFR

date of this report were: BEEWN

Executive Directors HITES

Tan Xuguang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BN (EFRFEHEENTE)
Xu Xinyu (Executive President) B EBTHEE)

Li Dakai (Executive President) TRABTAAE)

Fang Hongwei (Executive President) FHE#TEE)

Sun Shaojun (Executive President) BRLOEBEHTHAZ)

Zhang Quan (Executive President) R RBTHEE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Chen Xuejian BR 22 1%

Yeung Sai Hong 5t

Julius G. Kiss Julius G. Kiss (J& 7 H7 G. 5 Hf)
Han Xiaogqun EE RN

Jiang Kui I =

Gordon Riske (appointed on 24 June 2013) Gordon Riske(R =ZZ—=F XA =+ MmA L)
Liu Huisheng (resigned on 21 March 2013) Aep(R_E—=F=ZA=+—HEMT
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHHITES

Liu Zheng 2 1

Li Shihao =it &

Loh Yih E R

Chu, Howard Ho Hwa KREE

Zhang Zhenhua ik ik ZE

Li Luwen FHOR

Supervisors Ex

Sun Chengping e

Jiang Jianfang EER

Lu Wenwu B xR

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive RARAREDEEEBUHATESREST B
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 EXGHMERATDEF LHAATERRAD
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of FE3IVBBRMREBLEFOHELHFERR B
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, the AREAH RXRAAMRASBELIFNITE
Company still considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are EHBEIATLT

independent.
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“DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) *

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 30 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company from 29 June 2012 to 28 June 2015. Each of the non-executive
directors, independent non-executive directors and supervisors was appointed
for a term from 29 June 2012 to 28 June 2015, except that Mr. Gordon Riske
(non-executive director) was appointed at the Company’s annual general
meeting on 24 June 2013 for a term from 24 June 2013 to 28 June 2015,
and, Mr. Liu Zheng and Mr. Li Shihao (independent non-executive directors),
were appointed on the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29
June 2012 for a term of office from 29 June 2012 to 29 April 2013, and Mr.
Liu Zheng and Mr. Li Shihao have since continued to holdover as directors
pursuant to the laws of the PRC.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Gordon Riske holds interest in KION and was interested in contracts for
the sale of commodities, provision of product testing, casting, catering and
leasing services by Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, a subsidiary of the
Company, to KION and its subsidiaries, and in contracts for the provision of
information technology services, accounting, human resources, logistics
services etc. by KION and its subsidiaries to Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG.
Save as disclosed above, no director or supervisor had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

34 WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD

ESERSE (@)

SEENSHEBASHNBE
ARREENAEESHEEABNBEF
BERFEHRE24F308 ©

ESELNESRBESL
NOTEETCREHEARATYRB AL
B -—FXAZThHEB Z=F—71
FRNAZTNRAL -BFEHTESF Bk
HOTEEREENTHAE T —Z_F A
—thEB Z2-_F—RAF A=+ NBIE-
MEFE#) 7T 8 F Gordon Riske e AN T — =4
NAZTWBZARBIBRERAFAE LEE
F AR =T =FNAZFTHAREZ
E-FFANAZFTNBL MBIIIERTE
LR -FHER _E-——"FXA-_+NHE
CARRBRREAFASGLEZMC AHE=
E-—EXA-t+HLABRE-_ZET—=FM0A
—t+ABLE MBATEERTHEAEEDR
BB AREEETESR -

EERESNEACHNESR

Gordon RiskeE £ FH AT HEBER - KA
EZHBRAMEREBEAZECERINFH R A
REMNBARAEEE R REERAIR &
B EBRHERBEMIBAARENBE R
AAMNERRAECXRBEEERMRS -
G ANEBER BRHERBENEHVTES
B o BREOAEEEN BEEFTREER
ARAaE - HERAR - WEBQR KRR B
ARIFANTY HAEBEFBSE AN
MENTEERHMEREEEAERD -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN SENESMNARM KB R D/
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES g &=

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short position (if any) of the RZEBE—=ZF+_A=Z+—H EEF -5k
directors, the chief executives and the supervisors in the shares, underlying EEABREERNARATILEBEEIE(TE
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within EREFELALRBEEN(EERBAEEMN]E
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), XVED R D - HERDRESFF  #ERIE
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section BENBAEEMNEINRERERAANTNBEFE
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong MECMAERE ARBELTAREFEND
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by BHERZHEBEESFA(RESTADHAED A

Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code"), were as follows: EARNARBRAB I EZREE(AE)
U
(@) Interests in the shares of the Company (@) RoallRpmmER

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

Number of "H" shares of the

Name of director Capacity “A" shares held held Company

(RN

Fi & s CBTRE

EERE g % AREE HIR & B Bkt

Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 16,512,000 (Note 1) - 0.83%
& B EmiEAA (Krat1)

Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
wEHE EmnEEA (Krat1)

Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
BRAOE EmEAA (Krat1)

Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
3R R EafEE A (KtzE1)

Yeung Sai Hong (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 63,168,000 (Note 2) - 3.16%
H (A FF3) HZEEERE (Kt 7%2)

Julius G. Kiss (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 41,260,000 (Note 2) - 2.06%
Julius G. Kiss (/= | 87 G. 5 H7) HZEEERE (Kt E2)

(Kt 7t 4)
Zhang Zhenhua (Note 5) Interest held by spouse 25,300 - 0.001%
R 4R 2E (M 52 5) REFRE R
Notes: B i -

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. 1. ZERNDZARENGIAER - WEKR 7
The domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a ARAETHEAR UARKSE &
Renminbi-denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for BREBEARKEIOOT  UAREBERH
and paid up in Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” RHAIRIN B E - ZERGRALRAFA
shares of the Company upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the RIERIYNE %X Z B E i #E K #3AR L E
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. ZAR .

2. These were previously foreign shares of the Company. The foreign shares were 2. ZERNDZBEIRBERNAINER -9V ER B
ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-denominated par value KOG BEITHERER UARESE -
of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in a currency other BREBARKEI00T UARELI G E
than Renminbi. These shares became “A” shares of the Company upon the "A” CRERBE ZERORAE D AARE
share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. FINFE R BT LR B RE]ZARR ©
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 DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

3.

~ & B

Yeung Sai Hong, a non-executive Director, was directly and indirectly interested
in the issued share capital of Peterson Holdings Company Limited (“Peterson”),
which in turn held 63,168,000 “A” shares in the Company.

Julius G. Kiss, a non-executive Director, was indirectly interested in the entire
issued share capital of IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H.
(“IVM”), which in turn held 41,260,000 “A” shares in the Company.

Zhang Zhenhua, an independent non-executive Director, was deemed to be
interested in 25,300 “A” shares in the Company which were beneficially held by
his wife, Ms. Wu Miaodli.

All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.

(b) Interests in the shares of associated corporations of the

ESERSE (@)

3 HBITEFBCMEERBEEFIEN
ERERDE([F#])E FTRA#E#
1 1% 27 All#% 563, 168,000 78 23 GIABL iZ 15

4. JF #4177 E F Julius G. Kiss (L FIl 87 G. & H7) [
7 1 B B84 FUIVM 17 72 56 48 0 40 B 1R 2
A ([IVM]) 2 588 # 7T R A - TIIVM A 15 &
41,260,000 8 7~ 2 FIABR BZ 17

5. WL FFH T B F R IR AR 4 0 25,3008
ARAARBRD A HEE#Em M ZRD
HEZFHERLLERIA -

6. LRI ERE RS BIFE -

(b) R A B A8 B OE B IR AD Y i

Company
Approximate
Class and percentage
number of interest in the
securities entire issued
interested or share capital
Name of associated deemed to be of associated
Name of director corporation Nature of interest interested corporations
BEERR RN P
REARHE 2B BT
EENES B A B BE &
EEHE AE L B E B EHEMEE B R&AE BHBED
Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG Beneficial owner 365,250 0.37%
Gordon Riske (#f 3F) EmEA A ordinary shares
365,250 % & i Ik
Interest held by spouse 3,000 0.003%
M BHEEHNER ordinary shares
3,000 % & & ik
Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 365,250 Bt &t ¢ JF#1 77 B F Gordon Riske 3 KION Group AG

shares in KION Group AG and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000
shares in KION Group AG which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita
Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors, the
chief executives nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DETAILS OF CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND RN EBNT EFZARBRISRIB N
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
() Changes in share capital N BREZEBER
1. Changes in share capital (as at 31 December 2013) 1. BRAEGEFELX(EAE_-F
—=F+_-_HA=+—H)

Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
KREBE KREBEH (+-) KREHE

No.of  Percentage Newshares  Bonus  Transferof Restriction Sub-total No.of  Percentage

shares issued Issue surplus lifted shares

to capital
g2 AR BITHR #R AELER RRRE Nt 88 ERiiA

. Restricted circulating shares 684,221,513 34.22% - - - (141,721,049 (141,721,049) 542,500,464 27.13%

BREGFHRS

1. State-owned shares - - - - - - - - -
BxRR

2. State-owned legal person shares 447,869,513 22.40% - - - (19,993,049  (19,993,049) 427,876,464 21.40%
EBEARR

3. Shares held by other domestic 142,224,000 7.11% - - - (27,600,000  (27,600,000) 114,624,000 5.73%
entities
Eto AR
including: Shares held by 85,392,000 4.27% - - - (27,600,0000  (27,600,000) 57,792,000 2.89%
domestic non-state-owned legal
persons
Eh RS
BiEAER
Shares held by domestic natural 56,832,000 2.84% - - - - - 56,832,000 2.84%
persons
BERERA
ik

4. Shares held by foreign entities 94,128,000 4.71% - - - (94,128,000  (94,128,000) - -
HERK
including: Shares held by 94,128,000 471% - - - (94,128,000  (94,128,000) - -
overseas legal persons
H ENEARR
Shares held by overseas natural - - - - - - - - -
persons

FHERABR

I Non-restricted circulating shares 1,315,088,126 65.78% - - - 141721049 141,721,049 1,456,809,175 72.81%

ERERFHRY

1. RMB ordinary shares 829,328,126 41.48% - - - 1721049 141,721,049 971,049,175 48.57%
AREEBR

2. Domestic listed foreign shares - - - - - - - - -
SR LR ER

3. Overseas listed foreign shares 485,760,000 24.30% - - - - - 485,760,000 24.30%
S9N ETRSMER

4. Others - - - - - - - - -
£t

I, Total number of shares 1,999,309,639 100% - - - - - 1,999,309,639 100%
GRS

Note: On 13 September 2013, 121,728,000 restricted circulating shares Wiar: =
became circulating in the market, representing approximately 6.09% of 121,
the total share capital of the Company. On 19 November 2013, &

19,993,049 restricted circulating shares became circulating in the market, — =
representing approximately 1% of the total share capital of the 19,993,0495% [R & it
Company. 1
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Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as at 31

December 2013)

Total number of Shareholders The number of shareholders is
146,124 among which 145,840 are
shareholders of “A" shares and
284 are shareholders of “H”

ESERSE (@)

mn EZERREFRBEARMV=-F-—=%F
t=ZA=+—8H)

BREMAE 146,124 - HPAR IR E
145,840 F * HIE IR B 284 F -

shares.
Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders Fi 1045 % 5 #£ R 180
Total Number of
Approximate number Number of shares
percentage of of restricted pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held shares held shares held or frozen
BRE R
FREK 353 REH
ESE BREME Bl HRAY g8 R4 E
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.22% 484,235,914 - N/A
ERRREERBAERAR MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 336,476,400 336,476,400 -
HEEREEBRRAR BEEA
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal person 3.71% 74,156,352 74,156,352 -
HHTRERA BAEEA
Fujian Longyan Construction Machinery Domestic non-state-owned 3.26% 65,100,240 57,792,000 -
(Group) Company Limited legal person
BRESIREEM(ZE)ERAAF BREBREA
Peterson Holdings Company Limited Overseas legal person 3.16% 63,168,000 - -
EHERER DA BANEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft Overseas legal person 2.06% 41,260,000 - -
m.b.H. BAEN
B FIVMBT B g DR BRAR
Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd Domestic non-state-owned 1.97% 39,379,153 - -
RYTEIHREEEBRAT legal person
BRIEBFEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned 1.46% 29,240,000 - -
Company Limited legal person
WRECERELCERNERAR BAFEBZEA
Boshi Value Growth Fund Domestic non-state-owned 1.01% 20,095,545 - -
BREEERESREES legal person
BRIEBFEA
Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment  State-owned legal person 1.00% 19,993,049 - -

Holding Group Co., Ltd
HKHNTEEEERERREBER AR

WEICHAI PoweErR Co., LTD.
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Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

Number of the
non-restricted

AT 105 IR & 1% 1 IR R #5 B 1527

shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholders, or whether there

is any acting in concert relationship among them.

Among the shareholders, Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding

Group Co., Ltd held 3,049 shares through general account, 11,900,000 shares
through client account of collateral securities for margin trading at Guotai Junan
Securities Company Limited, and 8,090,000 shares through the agreed
repurchase earmarked account at Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited,

totaling 19,993,049 shares.

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares
e
IR & R

KRR E B KRG HE IR 45 & 3
HKSCC Nominees Limited 484,235,914 Overseas listed foreign shares
EERREERBEAGRLDA BAN T ANE B
Peterson Holdings Company Limited 63,168,000 RMB ordinary shares
BEERAER QA AR EBR
VM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. 41,260,000 RMB ordinary shares
B VMBI A A A BR D F ARBL®ER
Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd 39,379,153 RMB ordinary shares
RINTEIFHIEEEEBR QA AR L @R
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 29,240,000 RMB ordinary shares
IWRECEAXELERNDERRDA ARBELRER
Boshi Value Growth Fund 20,095,545 RMB ordinary shares
HREEEREFAREESD AR L m R
Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding 19,993,049 RMB ordinary shares

Group Co., Ltd AR L @R
HNTEEEEREERERAFER QA
MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL PLC 13,380,682 RMB ordinary shares

ARBLER

China Minsheng Banking Corp — 12,411,198 RMB ordinary shares

RERFIVEH > BEFREES AR L @R
PR RAERITIREIRFI1001E H
DEUTSCHE BANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 9,004,473 RMB ordinary shares

ARBLRER
Note: Kt &t -
It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the top ten 1. K2 E] R 41 H B A SRR R A M BT A A

BREGMARRZEREFEBBEE
WARMNEZEBR —HTBAL -

RNAREF - HNTEE EEREZERE
B F R 2R A BB 5 A3,0495
BREAFELESRODERAAEFL 5
JH 35 5 E IR i 5 Bk = 5 A 11,900,000 %
BEAFELZESFRGBBR RN EE
[5] # 5 fE = 1% 758,090,000 8% » BB 4 &t #
#19,993,049 % »
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS F2RR
The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant ARRIBREBEEF LB EBGRIEBHREED

to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock £ 2 i R & & fit (8 5 [ & 78 B 2 AT H 3R &Y
Exchange) shows that as at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other ~ Fl#@H)B R R -ZFT—=F+=—A=+—H"

than directors, chief executives and supervisors) had the following interests and TIHAT(EE SREBEBABEREZRKRIN

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company: EARARABRORAEROTES TSR
maE(nEg) :
Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital  Percentage
Long/ comprising comprising of total
Short Number of only  Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position A shares A shares H shares H shares capital
EAR EHER  RE®RT
we/ R & BE  REAEH
A8 ELi) KB AREE BOl HER & B Bak Bak
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
BREREEFRAA EHHEEAA e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) BREEERE HE
WREISEARAA (G HI)
State-owned Assets Supervision and  Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
Administration Commission of ~ B Z I EEREE HE
Shandong Province (“Shandong
SASAC") (Note 1)
LWREEEEEEEERZER
(MUERBEEZNHH1)
Brandes Investment Partners, LP Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 18.99% 3.93%
REEE HE
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 62,668,076 12.90% 3.13%
RELE A
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 3,144,043 0.65% 0.16%
EREAA HE
Investment manager Long - - 42,480 0.01% 0.00%
RELRE e
Trustee (other than bare trustee) Long - - 960 0.00% 0.00%
REABBREARI) A
Custodian - Corporation/approved Long - - 50,298,138 10.35% 2.52%
lending agent e
REA-ZE/BEBHREA
53,485,621 11.01% 2.68%
Beneficial owner Short - - 728,000 0.15% 0.04%
EHHEAA R

40 WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD
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Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital  Percentage
Long/ comprising comprising of total
Short Number of only  Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position A shares A shares H shares H shares capital
BAR EHER  RE®RT
#e/ IR & BE  REAEAH
8 5% KB AREE Bak HER & B Bak Bak
Schroders Plc Investment manager Long - - 33,988,030 6.99% 1.70%
REERE A
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.  Interest of corporation controlled by ~ Long - - 27,669,400 6.84% 1.66%
(Note 2) (ff7£2) the substantial shareholder jea-y
R BR3P HE ] 40 5 [ 4 R
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
Portfolio (Note 2) (¥ #2) RERE H#E
Barclays PLC Person having a security interest in Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
shares e
Hih A REEZNHA
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.27%
the substantial shareholder HE
INGESiEE N
25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
the substantial shareholder KA
AR ST R B 405 B R A
Notes: B 2t
1. State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province 1. LWFEERERAEEEERZRe([WRAEE])

FFAIRETEERFRALFANZERAE  wL
RETEBBRAAFGAEREERERERA
7] (5T 78 73 4 ¥ 5 i 08 %) ) 2 BB AR 7K -

(“Shandong SASAC”) held the entire capital of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co.,
Ltd., which in turn held the entire capital of Weichai Group Holding Limited (formerly
known as Weifang Diesel Engine Works).

LB ZEETERRFEZHRE R I
FRARAR-ZF-—ZFNA+EHABARE
BITE WIARREESRAEGED HEE
REZBREBD U EED) A GEAREE -

2. The number of H shares reported above held by the relevant substantial shareholder 2.
does not take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 17 August
2012 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no
change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

B EXBEEN R-_ZET—-—=%+_-A4
=+t HA4ARATEREENELARAEET
AP IR EMBEEERAR -

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2013.
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Shareholdings of the directors, supervisors and chief
executives

Eight of the directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company,
namely Tan Xuguang, Xu Xinyu, Sun Shaojun, Zhang Quan, Ding
Yingdong, Dai Lixin, Feng Gang and Tong Dehui, are natural-person
promoter shareholders and have, with confidence in the future
development of the Company, voluntarily given their irrevocable
undertaking that the non-restricted shares held by each of them in the
Company shall be put under lock-up arrangements for a period from 21
May 2013 to 30 April 2016.

New appointment or resignation of the directors,
supervisors and chief executives
1. At the Board meeting convened on 21 March 2013, the Board:

(i) considered and passed the resolution to appoint Mr. Kwong
Kwan Tong as the Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and Authorised Representative and agreed that
Mr. Hoe York Joo resigned as the Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Authorised Representative both
with effect from 23 March 2013; and

(i) agreed that Mr. Liu Huisheng resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 21 March 2013.

2. At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the
Company held on 24 June 2013, Mr. Gordon Riske was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company.

3. At the Board meeting convened on 31 December 2013, the Board
agreed that Mr. Li Zhi resigned as the Vice President of the
Company.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD
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E5 - EE - SRERASERMN

EXT EST SREBAEER
B
ARAEF EFE SMEEAEBDE
BERBAANBREARR 25l REMR
X -H¥E BLEFE KRR TAR B
SLEOSME - AEE EERERAR
R R A (E 0 B BRI A AT AR
BEZERBEARNNEREREKRD A
TE-=ZFRAA-t+-—HEBRE#ETE "
HERE_FT-R"FOA=FTHL-

EE - EE SREEAEBNH

B @EEER

. RZFE-—Z=ZH=ZA=-+—-B&1T
MEEggRL EFg:

() EBEZBABERARAZZEH
BELEERMBHE QAT
MEREE/RR YREM
GBAELEBRITVBAE A
AWEREERR BZF
—=F A+ =BRBE:
P52

(i) RAEReBrLEsFERRA
FHTESF BT =F
At —BREXM-

2. RZE—=F~"AZ-+TWMHRTT
Z & EREF RKE 8B Z £ Gordon
Riskee £ AR DNBIERITES -

3. RZE—=F+ZRAR=+—H#E
THESEeZEL EE2ERE
TEEEBTARA B EE-
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HEMHEERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company and the Group had HE_Z—=F+Z_A=Z=+—HIEFE" &
the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are ~ A A EAEEAF THFHELBER S ZF
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing RENETHBERE EHRAUFUATH
Rules. REHE -

List of Connected Persons and the relationship with the BEALIRRHERNEE ZBEE

Group
Relationship between
the Connected Persons
Name of Connected Persons Abbreviation and the Group
BAEALTER 5 18 BEATHEAEEZBE
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weichai Holdings Held a 16.83% interest in the Company,
HMEEREBR AR QA S IR one of the Promoters of the Company
FBEARRT683% M
KRARERAZ—
Weifang Weichai Deutz Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. Weichai Deutz Weichai Holdings held a 50% interest in
WD BRI BER A A 88 BOR Weichai Deutz
HEE 1R IR FE B M S B R 50% HE
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. (formerly Weichai Heavy Machinery Weichai Holdings held a 30.59% interest in
known as Shan Dong Juli Company Limited) V=g Weichai Heavy Machinery
HHRERBRHBERARGIBRLRE N RN VESCE RS B S B 30.50% #E 5
ERRAF])
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.  Fast Transmission Held a 49% interest in a subsidiary of the
B ATHEREEHERBRAF TR EE Company, Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. ("SFGC")
BAEXRAWERF
BEETREREREMERA
(TBRPEE Lt ¥R 1) 49% HE 5
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Automotive Held a 49% interest in a
BEAEEEBRETLAA BRAEHE subsidiary of the Company,

Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automotive Co., Ltd.
("Shaanxi Zhongqi”)
BEARRANERA
BRAERTEFRRAF
(IBRAEER])49% # =
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Name of Connected Persons

2 et ) |

Abbreviation

Relationship between
the Connected Persons
and the Group

BEEALER 5 18 BEATHASEEZBE
Weichai (Yangzhou) Yaxing Auto Co., Ltd. Yangzhou Yaxing Indirectly held as to 51% by Weichai Holdings
HE(HGMNEE2RAEBRRA A BMEE HAREREEFBESI%ER

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
MWREIESEMBER LA

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd
HETETERBNAER R A

Shandong Finance

R

Weichai Westport
W5 T

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had continuing
connected transactions entered into in accordance with the following
agreements.

44

Provision of general services and labor services by
Weichai Holdings and its associate to the Company
Pursuant to the general services agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Weichai Holdings General Services Agreement”), Weichai
Holdings has agreed to provide certain labour services as well as general
services to the Company, namely, environmental protection, security,
fire, repair, maintenance and other general services and the payment of
certain town land use right tax in relation to the property occupied and/
or used by the Company. The fees payable by the Company to Weichai
Holdings with respect to the provision of the said services are
determined based on the actual costs incurred by Weichai Holdings and
apportioned on a pro-rata basis according to the area of the relevant
property occupied and/or used by the Company plus a service charge
representing not more than 5% of such costs and settled by the parties
on a monthly basis.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBERLD

Shandong Heavy Industry, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, indirectly held a
35% interest in Shandong Finance
BARRIFERFILRETIHE

FE LR W 35%

Weichai Holdings held a 40% interest in
Weichai Westport
HESRE R R B MR TI B 40% H =

rNEBEBE_ZE—=%+-A=+—81
FEAERETIBRITUNZEEEER S

1. HRERREBEATAEAALQT
REGERBREHRH
BREARREREZERR_TT=F
T—ATEBIZNES R H&#E
ZHBABRETRER KWLM
RERGARBHE]D  ERIERFAE
MARAREHRETEHERBULERR
®E B #E - REREMEASR
BEGEERYE UERKBSXINARFE
AE/SEROMENE TREL
AR iRE EARBTME - A2 A
FERMERZERNNER TR R M
ERAELENERKARAREE B
/R EROBBYFEBELHI#HSD
5 IE % E R AT % 1R 5% 8 AR 75 Ft
BitE RgSRAKE-
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Pursuant to the general services agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Works (“Chongging
Weichai”), an associate of Weichai Holdings, on 17 November 2003 (as
amended and supplemented by various supplemental agreements,
collectively referred to as “Chongqing Weichai General Services
Agreement”), Chongging Weichai has agreed to provide certain general
services to the Company, namely, environmental protection, security,
fire, and other general services and the payment of certain town land
use right tax in relation to the property occupied and/or used by the
Company. The fees payable by the Company to Chongging Weichai
with respect to the provision of the said services are determined based
on the actual costs incurred by Chongging Weichai and apportioned on
a pro-rata basis according to the area of the relevant property occupied
and/or used by the Company plus a service charge not exceeding 20%
of such costs (save that the town land use right tax paid by Chongging
Weichai on behalf of the Company will not be subject to the said 20%
service charge) and are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid services provided by Weichai
Holdings and Chongging Weichai for the year ended 31 December 2013
is RMB92 million. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
amount charged by Weichai Holdings and Chongging Weichai to the
Company for the said services was RMB79,336,501.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreements to the Weichai Holdings
General Services Agreement and the Chongging Weichai General
Services Agreement dated 29 August 2013, Weichai Holdings (and its
associates) (as the case may be) shall provide the said general services
and labour services in respect of utilities to the Company, Weichai
Casting, Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics and/or other Group
Company (as the case may be) and Chongging Weichai (and its
associates) (as the case may be) shall provide the said general services to
the Chongging Branch and/or other companies of the Group (as the
case may be) for a term of three years ending 31 December 2016. the
Company shall have an option to renew the agreement for a term of
three years.

-
e -

LR (@)

A4

T

REANAEEEAREZIRB(ERE
MR BRERZBEALIR-FZE
ZFET AT LRI INGRE RS
(BzEBABRET RER RBAIE
BHRESARBHED) EEARRAE
MARRRERR R B RE
MERERBEETHEARE  UEAS
XNARRERR/HEBOYED
ETWHELHERY st L R
ME ARRENEERRINNER
DIRBEEBAEMEENERNK AR
ARAMER R,/ SERNEREYEEE
LBl S IEZFERATZ R20%
MRGHMEAEEERERERRAR
A ELHERRETEER L
M20%MRIEHIMBER)  HETIRAKE

MELE IR R EE SR B R R A
E_E-—=%+_-_A=+—BItEE
ZREBEFE LR A A R 92,000,000
T RBE-_Z—=ZF+=-_A=+—H
LEFE BB REEHLED Ll
RERAARBIWEBNESEAARYE
79,336,501 7T °

WRIB SRR IR A A AR TS 15 3 M B2 R SR
RARBHER_ZE-—=F/AA=-TA
BB & H7 f 5E AR M ST B (R HB
BAD@EBRME)AARRR - #RE
B EPHFE BEEORLHME
B~ B (R B R E) IR # AT AR & IR
REMBEERT B REMEE ML
(REBEAL) (BRBEAME)NEES
RAR/SEMEERRGRERTE)
REHEMASARY BREFARBEEZ
E-RFT-_A=+—BLE=EFE-
AARAEBEERERGH SP=F-
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Supply and/or connection of utilities by Weichai
Holdings and its associate to the Company and its
subsidiaries

Pursuant to the utility services agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Weichai Holdings Utilities Services Agreement”), Weichai
Holdings has agreed to provide or provide the connection of certain
utility and energy services to the Company, namely, water, electricity,
gas, steam, oxygen, nitrogen, compressed air, waste water treatment
and supply of treated waste water, etc. The fees payable by the
Company to Weichai Holdings with respect to the provision of the said
services are determined based on the actual usage of the Company and
by reference to the market prices of such utilities. If only government
published rates are available with respect to certain utilities, the fees
payable would be determined by reference to the government published
rates plus the wastage, depreciation and repair expenses incurred by
Weichai Holdings in relation thereto. If no market price or government
published rates with respect to the above utility and energy services are
available, the Company will pay the actual costs incurred by Weichai
Holdings in relation to the provision of such utility and energy services
plus a service charge representing not more than 20% of such costs.
Since 1 January 2006, Weichai Holdings has been charging the Company
a service charge of 5% of the actual costs incurred thereof. The fees are
settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the utility services agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Chongging Weichai Utilities Services Agreement”),
Chongging Weichai has agreed to provide or provide the connection of
certain utility and energy services to the Company, namely, water,
electricity, natural gas, steam, oxygen, nitrogen and compressed air, etc.
The fees payable by the Company to Chongging Weichai with respect to
the provision of the said services are determined based on the usage
thereof by the Company or, if it is not possible to measure such usage,
pro-rated according to the respective sales of Chongging Weichai and
the Company and by reference to the market prices of such utilities. If
only government published rates are available with respect to certain
utilities, the fees payable will be determined by reference to the
government published rates plus the wastage, depreciation and repair
expenses incurred by Chongging Weichai in relation thereto. If no
market prices or government published rates with respect to the above
utilities and energy services are available, the Company will pay the
actual costs incurred by Chongging Weichai in relation to the provision
of such utilities and energy services plus a service charge representing
not more than 20% of such costs. Chongging Weichai has been
charging the Company a service charge of 20% of the actual costs
incurred thereof. The fees are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.
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The approved annual cap for the aforesaid services provided by Weichai
Holdings and Chongging Weichai for the year ended 31 December 2013
is RMB286 million. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
amount charged by Weichai Holdings and Chongging Weichai to the
Company and its subsidiaries for the said services was RMB90,238,732.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreements to the Weichai Holdings
Utilities Services Agreement and the Chongging Weichai Utilities Services
Agreement dated 29 August 2013, Weichai Holdings (and its associates)
(as the case may be) shall provide or provide the connection of (as the
case may be) the said services to the Company, Weichai Casting and/or
other companies of the Group (as the case may be) and Chongging
Weichai (and its associates) (as the case may be) shall provide or provide
the connection of (as the case may be) the said services to the
Chongging Branch and/or other companies of the Group (as the case
may be) for a period of three years ending 31 December 2016. The
Company shall have an option to renew the agreement for a term of
three years.

Purchase of diesel engine parts and components, gas
and scrap metals, materials, diesel engines and related
products and processing services by the Company and its
subsidiaries from Weichai Holdings and its associates
Pursuant to the purchase and processing services agreement entered
into between the Company, Weichai Holdings and Chongging Weichai
on 27 November 2008, (as amended and supplemented by various
supplemental agreements, collectively referred to as the “Weichai
Purchase and Processing Services Agreement”)

(i)  the Company has agreed to purchase diesel engine parts and
components, gas and scrap metals, materials and related products
at market prices from Weichai Holdings and Chongqing Weichai;
and

(i)  Chongging Weichai has agreed to provide processing services to
the Company with respect to certain semi-finished diesel engine
parts at fees determined based on the relevant market prices.

The above transactions are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases made and services
received from Weichai Holdings and Chongging Weichai for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is RMB215 million. In the year ended 31
December 2013, the total purchases made and processing services
received by the Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Holdings and
Chongging Weichai amounted to RMB147,523,027.

Pursuant to the supplemental agreement to the Weichai Purchase and
Processing Services Agreement dated 29 August 2013, the Weichai
Purchase and Processing Services Agreement will last for a term of three
years ending 31 December 2016, the Company shall have an option to
renew the agreement for a term of three years.
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Sale of diesel engines, diesel engine parts and
components, materials, semi-finished goods and related
products and provision of processing services by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings and its
certain associates

Pursuant to the purchase and processing services agreement entered
into between the Company and Weichai Resources as suppliers and
Weichai Holdings and its certain associates as customers on 27
November 2008 (as amended and supplemented by various
supplemental agreements, collectively referred to as the “Weichai
Purchase and Processing Service Agreement”), the Company and
Weichai Resources have agreed to (i) sell certain diesel engines, diesel
engine parts and components and related products, and materials for
the repair services of diesel engines, and (i) provide certain processing
services in relation to the production of diesel engines to Weichai
Holdings and its certain associates at market prices. The transactions are
settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales made and services
provided to Weichai Holdings and its certain associates for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is RMB487 million. In the year ended 31
December 2013, the total sales made and processing services provided
by the Company to Weichai Holdings and its certain associates
amounted to RMB295,708,167.

Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, the agreement will last for a
term of three years ending 31 December 2016, the Company shall have
an option to renew the agreement for a term of three years.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Lease of buildings and equipment by Weichai Holdings
(and its associates) to the Company (and its subsidiaries)
Pursuant to the asset lease agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 21 October 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively referred
to as “Lease of Buildings and Equipments”), Weichai Holdings has
agreed to lease to the Company certain buildings (including factories
and warehouses with a total gross floor area of 63,245 square metres)
situated at Weichai Holdings (the “Buildings”) and all the equipment in
relation to the manufacture of certain semi-finished diesel engine parts
(collectively referred to as “Equipments”) located in the Buildings for a
term ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry of which the parties
may renew the term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the lease rental payable to Weichai
Holdings in respect of the Lease of Buildings and Equipments for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is RMB43 million. In the year ended 31
December 2013, the total lease rental payable by the Company to
Weichai Holdings in respect of the Lease of Buildings and Equipments
amounted to RMB42,078,426.

Lease of properties by Chongqing Weichai to the
Company

Pursuant to the properties lease agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 1 July 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively referred
to as “Lease of Properties”), Chongqing Weichai has agreed to lease to
the Company certain land and buildings where the Chongging
Production Line is situated for a term ending 31 December 2015, upon
the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another three
years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the lease rental payable to Chongging
Weichai in respect of the Lease of Properties for each of the years
ended/ending 31 December 2013, 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2015 is RMB4 million. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
lease rental payable by the Company to Chongging Weichai in respect
of the Lease of Properties amounted to RMB4,000,000.
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Sale of semi-finished diesel engine parts and related
products by the Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai
Deutz

Pursuant to the master sales agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Deutz on 21 October 2003 (as supplemented by
various supplemental agreements), the Company has agreed to supply
semi-finished diesel engine parts and related products to Weichai Deutz
for its 226B series of diesel engines, at market prices and settled on a
monthly basis, for a term ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of
which the Company shall have the option to extend the term for
another three years.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of semi-finished diesel
engine parts and related products to Weichai Deutz for the year ended
31 December 2013 is RMB315 million. In the year ended 31 December
2013, total sales of RMB76,975,756 of semi-finished diesel engine parts
and related products were made by the Company and its subsidiaries to
Weichai Deutz.

Provision of sales and warranty period repair services by
the Company to Weichai Deutz

Pursuant to the sales and warranty agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Deutz on 21 September 2005 (as supplemented
by various supplemental agreements), the Company has agreed to
provide sales and warranty period repair and maintenance services to
Weichai Deutz, at market prices and settled on a monthly basis, for a
term ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of which the Company
shall have the option to extend the term for another three years.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales and warranty period
repair services provided to Weichai Deutz for the year ended 31
December 2013 is RMB54 million. In the year ended 31 December 2013,
the sales and warranty period repair services provided by the Company
to Weichai Deutz amounted to RMB3,323,349.
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10.

Purchase of diesel engine parts and components and
related products by Weichai Resources from Weichai Deutz
Pursuant to the diesel engine parts and components and related
products purchase agreement entered into between Weichai Resources
and Weichai Deutz on 27 November 2008, Weichai Resources has
agreed to purchase from Weichai Deutz certain parts and components
for the manufacture of diesel engines, at market prices and settled on a
monthly basis, for a term ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of
which Weichai Resources shall have the option to extend the term for
another three years.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of diesel engine
parts and components and related products from Weichai Deutz for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is RMB100 million. In the year ended 31
December 2013, the total purchases of diesel engine parts and
components and related products made by Weichai Resources from
Weichai Deutz amounted to RMB59,519,719.

Purchase of diesel engines and related products by the
Company from Weichai Deutz

Pursuant to the diesel engines purchase agreement entered into
between the Company and Weichai Deutz on 27 November 2008 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the Company has
agreed to purchase certain diesel engines and related products from
Weichai Deutz, at market prices and settled on a quarterly basis, for a
term ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry of which the Company
shall have the option to extend the term for another three years.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of diesel engines
and related products from Weichai Deutz for the year ended 31
December 2013 is RMB150 million. In the year ended 31 December
2013, the total purchases of diesel engines and related products made
by the Company from Weichai Deutz amounted to RMB78,525,041.
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Sale of diesel engines and related products by the
Company to Weichai Heavy Machinery

The Company and Weichai Holdings entered into a framework
agreement on 17 November 2003 (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements). The rights and obligations of Weichai
Holdings in the agreement were assumed by Weichai Heavy Machinery
pursuant to a supplemental framework agreement entered into between
the Company, Weichai Holdings and Weichai Heavy Machinery on 29
August 2013.

Pursuant to the framework agreement, the Company has agreed to sell
to Weichai Heavy Machinery engines and related products, at market
prices and settled on a monthly basis, for a term ending 31 December
2015, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for
another three years.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of diesel engines and
related products to Weichai Heavy Machinery for the year ended 31
December 2013 is RMB420 million. In the year ended 31 December
2013, the total sales of diesel engines and related products made by the
Company to Weichai Heavy Machinery amounted to RMB275,196,585.

Purchase of diesel engine parts and components,
materials, steel and scrap metal, etc. and related
products and the processing services by the Company
and Weichai Resources from Weichai Heavy Machinery
Pursuant to the Purchase and Processing Services Agreement entered
into between the Company and Weichai Resources and Weichai Heavy
Machinery on 27 November 2008,

(i) the Company and Weichai Resources have agreed to purchase
from Weichai Heavy Machinery diesel engine parts and
components, steel and scrap metal, etc. and related products; and

(i) Weichai Heavy Machinery has agreed to provide processing
services to the Company with respect to diesel engine parts and
components.

The said purchases and processing services are transacted at market
prices and settled on a monthly basis for a term ending 31 December
2016, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for
another three years.
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The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases made and
processing services received from Weichai Heavy Machinery for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is RMB1 billion. In the year ended 31
December 2013, the total purchases made and processing services
received by the Company and Weichai Resources from Weichai Heavy
Machinery amounted to RMB291,350,951.

Supply of semi-finished diesel engine parts and
components, materials, related products and provision
of labor services by the Company (and its subsidiaries) to
Weichai Heavy Machinery

The Company and Weichai Holdings entered into a semi-finished diesel
engine parts supply agreement on 17 November 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements). The rights and
obligations of Weichai Holdings in the agreement were assumed by
Weichai Heavy Machinery pursuant to a supplemental agreement
entered into between the Company, Weichai Holdings and Weichai
Heavy Machinery on 9 November 2009.

Pursuant to the latest semi-finished diesel engine parts supply agreement
dated 29 August 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries have agreed to
sell certain semi-finished diesel engine parts, diesel engine parts and
components, reserve parts and related products and to provide the
relevant labour services (as the case may be) to Weichai Heavy
Machinery at market prices and settled on a monthly basis for a term
ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry of which the parties may
renew the term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid supply of semi-finished diesel
engine parts to Weichai Heavy Machinery for the year ended 31
December 2013 is RMB320 million. In the year ended 31 December
2013, the total supply of semi-finished diesel engine parts, diesel engine
parts and components, reserve parts and related products and provision
of labour services by the Company (and its subsidiaries) to Weichai
Heavy Machinery amounted to RMB174,591,461.
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Sale of parts and components of transmissions and
related products by SFGC to Fast Transmission

Pursuant to the parts and components sale agreement entered into
between SFGC and Fast Transmission on 1 August 2007 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), SFGC has
agreed to sell to Fast Transmission certain parts and components of
transmissions, namely, gearboxes, at market prices and settled every two
to three months, for a term ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry
of which the parties shall have an option to renew the agreement for a
term of three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of parts and
components of transmissions to Fast Transmission for the year ended 31
December 2013 is RMB3 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2013,
the total sales of parts and components of transmissions made by SFGC
to Fast Transmission amounted to RMB1,418,224,675.

Purchase of parts and components of transmissions and
related products by SFGC from Fast Transmission

Pursuant to the parts and components purchase agreement entered into
between SFGC and Fast Transmission on 1 August 2007 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), SFGC has
agreed to purchase from Fast Transmission certain parts and
components of transmissions and gears, namely, power take off
assemblies and castings, at market prices and settled every two to three
months, for a term ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry of which
the parties shall have an option to renew the agreement for a term of
three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchase of parts and
components of transmissions from Fast Transmission for the year ended
31 December 2013 is RMB3.2 billion. In the year ended 31 December
2013, the total purchases of parts and components of transmissions
made by SFGC from Fast Transmission amounted to RMB2,308,395,597.
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Sale of vehicles, parts and components of vehicles and
related products and provision of heat processing
services by certain subsidiaries of the Company to
Shaanxi Automotive and its associates

Pursuant to the vehicles, parts and components and raw materials sale
and heat processing services agreement entered into between Shaanxi
Zhonggi and certain other subsidiaries of the Company as suppliers (the
“Shaanxi Suppliers”) and Shaanxi Automotive and its associates as
customers (the “Shaanxi Customers”) on 1 August 2007 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the Shaanxi
Suppliers have agreed to sell certain vehicles and parts and components
of vehicles, namely, wire gauges emission pipes and raw materials,
ductile iron, castings, converted carriage, and provide heat processing
services to the Shaanxi Customers, at market prices and settled by the
parties every one to three months, for a term ending 31 December
2015, upon the expiry of which the Shaanxi Suppliers shall have an
option to renew the agreement for a term of three years.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of vehicles, parts and
components and raw materials and provision of heat processing services
to the Shaanxi Customers for the year ended 31 December 2013 is
RMB2.53 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total sales of
vehicles, parts and components and raw materials and provision of heat
processing services by the Shaanxi Suppliers to the Shaanxi Customers
amounted to RMB736,853,267.

Purchase of parts and components of vehicles, scrap
steel and related products by certain subsidiaries of the
Company from certain associates of Shaanxi Automotive
Pursuant to the parts and components and scrap steel purchase
agreement entered into between Shaanxi Zhonggi and certain other
subsidiaries of the Company as buyers (the “Shaanxi Buyers”) and
certain associates of Shaanxi Automotive as sellers (the “Shaanxi
Sellers”) on 1 August 2007 (as supplemented by various supplemental
agreements), the Shaanxi Buyers have agreed to purchase certain parts
and components of vehicles, namely, wire gauges and emission pipes,
brake hoofs, transmission axles and radiators, and scrap steel from the
Shaanxi Sellers, at market prices and settled by the parties every one to
three months, for a term ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of
which the Shaanxi Buyers shall have an option to renew the agreement
for a term of three years.
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18.

56

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of parts and
components of vehicles and scrap steel from the Shaanxi Sellers for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is RMB4.8 billion. In the year ended 31
December 2013, the total purchases of parts and components of
vehicles and scrap steel made by the Shaanxi Buyers from the Shaanxi
Sellers amounted to RMB2,652,481,147.

Sale of diesel engines and related products by the
Company to Yangzhou Yaxing

The Weichai Power Diesel Engines Supply Framework Agreement
entered into between the Company and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26
October 2012 (as supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated
21 March 2013) sets out the general terms and conditions for the sale
of diesel engines and related products by the Company to Yangzhou
Yaxing for a term from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, upon the
expiry of which the parties may renew the agreement on a mutually
agreed basis. The said diesel engines and related products shall be sold
by the Company to Yangzhou Yaxing from time to time with reference
to market prices and settled on a monthly basis. The transactions shall
be subject to normal commercial terms and terms no less favourable to
the Company than those available to the Company from independent
third parties.

The Company estimated that the transaction amount involved in this
Continuing Connected Transaction as set out in this sub-section and the
annual cap for the aforesaid sales of diesel engines and related products
by the Company to Yangzhou Yaxing for the year ended 2013 will not
exceed RMB140 million, and such amount was accordingly set as the
annual cap for this Continuing Connected Transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The total sales of diesel engines and related
products made by the Company to Yangzhou Yaxing actual transaction
amounts in 2013 amounted to RMB77,471,111.
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Sale of transmissions by SFGC to Yangzhou Yaxing

The Transmissions Supply Framework Agreement entered into between
SFGC and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as supplemented by
the supplemental agreement dated 21 March 2013) sets out the general
terms and conditions for the sale of transmissions by SFGC to Yangzhou
Yaxing for a term from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, upon the
expiry of which the parties may renew the agreement on a mutually
agreed basis. The said transmissions shall be sold by SFGC to Yangzhou
Yaxing from time to time with reference to market prices and settled on
a monthly basis. The transactions shall be subject to normal commercial
terms and terms no less favourable to SFGC than those available to
SFGC from independent third parties.

The Company estimated that the transaction amount involved in this
Continuing Connected Transaction as set out in this sub-section would
not exceed RMB5,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
such amount was accordingly set as the annual cap for this Continuing
Connected Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
actual transaction amount in 2013 was RMB4,478,239.

Sale of axles by Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. (“Hande
Axle") to Yangzhou Yaxing

The Axles Supply Framework Agreement entered into between Hande
Axle and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as supplemented by
the supplemental agreement dated 21 March 2013) sets out the general
terms and conditions for the sales of axles by Hande Axle to Yangzhou
Yaxing for a term from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, upon the
expiry of which the parties may renew the agreement on a mutually
agreed basis. The said axles shall be sold by Hande Axle to Yangzhou
Yaxing from time to time with reference to market prices and with a
payment term of two months. The transactions shall be subject to
normal commercial terms and terms no less favourable to Hande Axle
than those available to Hande Axle from independent third parties.

The Company estimated that the transaction amount involved in this
Continuing Connected Transaction as set out in this sub-section would
not exceed RMB12,500,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
such amount was accordingly set as the annual cap for this Continuing
Connected Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013. In the
year ended 2013, the sales of axles made by Hande Axle to Yangzhou
Yaxing was RMB7,914,801.
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Provision of finance services to the Company and its
subsidiaries by Shandong Finance

Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement entered into between the
Company and Shandong Finance on 30 June 2012 and a new Financial
Services Agreement entered into between the Company and Shandong
Finance on 21 March 2013, Shandong Finance has agreed to provide,
inter alia, certain deposit services to the Company in accordance with
the terms and conditions stated in the agreement with a term of one
year, which upon expiry, shall be automatically renewed for a term of
one year on mutually agreed basis, until both parties agree to terminate
the same or either party serves a written notice to other party to
terminate the same.

Shandong Finance shall provide certain deposit services to the Group,
the principal terms of which are as follows:

(@  the interest rate for the deposit of the Group’s funds with
Shandong Finance shall, subject to the compliance of the relevant
requirements of the People’s Bank of China, be no less than the
highest interest rate for the same type of deposit offered by the
major commercial banks for the same period; and

(b)  the maximum daily balance (including interests) of the Group’s
deposit with Shandong Finance shall not exceed RMB9 billion from
30 June 2013 to the period ending 29 June 2014.

During the year ended 2013, the maximum daily balance (including
interests) of the Group’s deposit in Shandong Finance amounted to
RMB5,445,649,152.
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22.

23.

Supply of basic engines, gas engine parts and related
products by the Company (and its subsidiaries) to
Weichai Westport

Pursuant to the Weichai Westport Supply Agreement, each of the
Company, Weichai Resources and Weichai Reproduction has agreed to
supply certain basic engines, gas engine parts and related products to
Weichai Westport, at market prices and/or prices agreed according to
the principle of fairness and reasonableness and settled on a monthly
basis for a term from 25 December 2012 to 31 December 2014, upon
the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

The Company estimated that the transaction amount of this Continuing
Connected Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013 shall not
exceed RMB2.1billion. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
supply of basic engines, gas engine parts and related products by the
Company (and its subsidiaries) to Weichai Westport amounted to
RMB1,425,883,952.

Purchase of gas engines, gas engine parts and related
products by the Company (and its subsidiaries) from
Weichai Westport

Pursuant to the Weichai Westport Purchase Agreement, each of the
Company, Weichai Reproduction and Weichai Resources has agreed to
purchase certain gas engines, gas engine parts and related products
from Weichai Westport, at market prices and/or prices agreed according
to the principle of fairness and reasonableness and settled on a monthly
basis, for a term from 25 December 2012 to 31 December 2014, upon
the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

The Company estimated that the transaction amount of this Continuing
Connected Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013 shall not
exceed RMB4.2 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
purchase of gas engines, gas engine parts and related products by the
Company (and its subsidiaries) from Weichai Westport amounted to
RMB2,907,283,560.
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24. Leasing of factory buildings by the Company to Weichai
Westport
Pursuant to the Weichai Westport Leasing Agreement, the Company has
agreed to lease certain factory buildings with a total gross floor area of
approximately 10,657 square meters located at Yard A, No.197 Fushou
Street East, High-tech Industrial Development Zone, Weifang City (45
TER M E L2 RIBETE1975F6) to Weichai Westport for a
term from 25 December 2012 to 31 December 2014, at an annual rental
of RMB4,179,700, settled on a monthly basis. Upon expiry of the
Weichai Westport Leasing Agreement, the parties may renew the term
for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The Company estimated that the transaction amount of this Continuing
Connected Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013 shall not
exceed RMB4,200,000. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
rental income received from Weichai Westport amounted to
RMB4,179,700.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors have issued an unqualified letter containing their finding and
conclusions in respect of these continuing connected transactions in
accordance with R14A.38.

In the letter the auditors have confirmed that:
a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the

disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company’s board of directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company.

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the
previous announcements dated 23 August 2010, 29 August 2011, 30
August 2012, 25 December 2012, 21 March 2013 and 29 August 2013
made by the Company in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.

A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

EMOLUMENT PoLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company participates in a defined contribution retirement insurance
scheme organized by the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees
and operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of payroll costs
(PRC) and a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries (Hong Kong).

The Company’s pension cost charged to the income statement for the financial
year is set out in Note V. 26 to the financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements that enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year under review attributable to the Group'’s
five largest customers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchase during the year under review attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review did a
director, a supervisor, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

M

On 24 January 2014, the capital increase of RMB1 billion to Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in
proportion to the respective shareholdings held by the Company and
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd., a related party, was considered
and approved by the Board. Based on their 51% and 49% shareholdings
respectively, the Company will contribute RMB510 million and Shaanxi
Automotive Group Co., Ltd. will contribute RMB490 million.

On 18 December 2013, according to the authority granted at the third
extraordinary general meeting in 2013 of the Company and the
resolution at the seventh board meeting in 2013, the Company decided
to exercise the Superlift 3.3% call option. Waichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.l. (“Weichai Lux”) served a notice to Superlift on 18
December 2013 to exercise the Superlift 3.3% call option.

On 15 January 2014, the transfer of KION shares from Superlift to
Weichai Lux was completed, whereby the interest in 3.3% of the issued
shares of KION was transferred to Weichai Lux from Superlift. Following
completion of this transaction, Weichai Lux became the holder of
33.3% of the total issued shares of KION.

On 28 March 2014, the dividend distribution budget for 2013 was
considered and approved by the 5th meeting of the third session of the
Board of the Company: the Board proposed to distribute a cash dividend
of RMB1.5 for every 10 shares (including tax) based on the total share
capital of 1,999,309,639 shares, without transfer from capital reserve.
Implementation of the aforesaid proposal is subject to the approval of
the general meeting.
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AubpiT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises six
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Liu Zheng, an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Liu has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, for
the purpose of this appointment. Throughout the year, the Audit Committee
discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial results and
internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the requirements
of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

CoMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
IN APPENDIX 14 TO THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan"”) and
directors not being able to attend all annual general meeting and extraordinary
general meetings due to other important work-related affairs, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The
Company considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company'’s strategies which will enable the Group to
grasp business opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers
that through the supervision of its board and its independent non-executive
directors, there is adequate balance of power and authority in place.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MoDeEL CoODE

During the year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the year under review.

SUFFICIENCY OF PuBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS  REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young were appointed as the Company’s auditors with effect from 20
August 2008 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu on 19 June 2008.

Ernst & Young retired on 18 May 2011 and were not reappointed as auditors
of the Company for its accounts prepared under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards. Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (/L5
ERAEAREESHETEFT) also retired on 18 May 2011 and were not
reappointed as auditors of the Company in the preparation of the Company’s
accounts under PRC accounting principles and financial regulations.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (& 7k ZERR @ 5+ AT =75 FT
(FFERE B A K) as the Company's only auditors with effect from 18 May 2011
for its accounts prepared under PRC accounting principles and financial
regulations. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (& kEE &M BT EmEe
k) will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Company for the year of 2014 will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year were approved by
the Board on 28 March 2014.

PUBLICATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE
AND THE COMPANY

The 2013 annual report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as
made available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in
due course.

On behalf of the Board

Tan Xuguang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong

28 March 2014
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Dear Shareholders,

During the period, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “Company Law") and the Articles
of Association of the Company and in compliance with the principle of
integrity, all members of the Supervisory Committee of the Company (the
“Supervisory Committee”) performed their duties of supervision with a view to
protecting shareholders’ interests in line with their accountability to all
shareholders. They monitored the operations and financial position of the
Company as well as the performance of the senior management of the
Company during the period. On behalf of the Supervisory Committee, | hereby
present our work report as follows:

OVERVIEW OF THE WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

In 2013, as required by the relevant rules and procedures of meetings of the
Supervisory Committee and based on its actual work, the Supervisory
Committee conducted inspections on the operations and financial position of
the Company, and reviewed the financial statements regularly. In 2013, the
Supervisory Committee held four meetings. Details of the time, attendance
and contents of the said meetings are as follows:

1. On 21 March 2013, the third meeting of the third session of the
Supervisory Committee was convened, during which the Supervisory
Committee considered and approved the full text and summary of the
2012 annual report of the Company, the work report of the Supervisory
Committee for 2012, the financial report and auditors’ report for 2012,
the final financial report for 2012, the financial budget report 2013,
profit distribution proposal for 2012, the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young Hua Ming LLP as the Company’s auditors for the year 2013, the
appointment of Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (/L5
ERAEER EESEIEFT) as the auditors of the Company for
internal control audit for the year 2013, the internal control self-
evaluation report for 2012 and the internal audit report for 2012.

2. On 26 April 2013, the first provisional meeting of the Supervisory
Committee in 2013 was convened, during which the Supervisory
Committee considered and approved the 2013 first quarterly report of
the Company and highly affirmed the financial performance of the
Company. The Supervisory Committee was of opinion that the quarterly
report gave a true and fair view of the operations and financial position
of the Company during the reporting period.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S REPORT (CONTINUED).

3. On 29 August 2013, the fourth meeting of the third session of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company was convened, during which
the Supervisory Committee considered and approved the full text and
summary of the 2013 interim report of the Company as well as the
implementation of the 2013 interim profit distribution proposal by the
Company and highly affirmed the financial performance of the
Company. The Supervisory Committee was of the opinion that the said
interim report gave a true and fair view of the operations and financial
position of the Company during the first-half of the year.

4. On 25 October 2013, the second provisional meeting of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company in 2013 was convened, during which the
Supervisory Committee considered and approved the 2013 third
quarterly report of the Company and highly affirmed the financial
performance of the Company. The Supervisory Committee was of the
opinion that the quarterly report gave a true and fair view of the
operations and financial position of the Company during the reporting
period.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON RELEVANT MATTERS OF THE
CompPANY IN 2013

Compliance of the Company’'s Operations with Legal
Requirements

During the period, pursuant to the laws and regulations of the PRC and the
Articles of Association of the Company, the Supervisory Committee duly
supervised the convening procedures and resolutions of general meetings of
Shareholders and meetings of the Board, the Board’s execution of resolutions
approved at general meetings of shareholders, the performance of duties by
the senior management of the Company. The Supervisory Committee is of the
view that the Board and the senior management of the Company performed
their duties with integrity and diligence, made decisions in a scientific
approach, maintained sound production and operation. The Supervisory
Committee was not aware of any action which would result in a breach of
laws or regulations or the Articles of Association of the Company or would
damage the interests of the Company and investors in the Company.
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“SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE.S REPORT.

Examination of Financial Position of the Company

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee further enhanced its
internal control, especially the examination of the financial system. The
Company has established a sound system on external investment, asset
transfer and connected transactions, etc. In its operation, the Company
observed the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and the relevant
provisions of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. On the control of
the movement of funds and administrative expenses, the Company strictly
controlled on each grade which ensured the normal operation of the Company
and avoided financial risk.

The Supervisory Committee was of the view that the annual financial report of
the Company reflected the financial position and operating results of the
Company in an objective, true and fair manner. The Supervisory Committee
has agreed on the audited financial report 2013 submitted by Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP.

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets of the Company

During the period, the Company’s acquisitions and disposals of assets were
conducted in such a way where the approval procedures were lawful, at
reasonable considerations, and under effective decision-making, benefiting the
integration of resources of the Company and aligning with the Company’s
development strategies. No insider dealing or other actions which would
damage the interests of the shareholders or cause any asset loss occurred or
emerged.

Connected Transactions

During the period, the connected transactions of the Company were
conducted under the principle of fairness and the procedures of the
transactions were in compliance with laws and regulations. The Supervisory
Committee is not aware of any action which would damage the interests of
the Company and the shareholders.

In 2014, the Supervisory Committee will continue to perform its supervisory
duties diligently for the protection of the interests of shareholders and the
Company in accordance with the Company Law and the Articles of Association
of the Company.

Sun Chengping
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Weifang, Shandong Province
28 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has always regarded the consistent maintenance of an excellent,
solid and reasonable corporate governance structure as its top priority.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has reviewed its
corporate governance documents and is of the view that the Company has
fully complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules other than Code A.2.1, which requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be two separate roles and should not be
performed by the same individual, and that the directors of the Company did
not attend each of the Company’s annual general meeting and extraordinary
general meetings in 2013 as required under code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code due to other essential business engagements.
Currently, Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan") serves as the Chairman as well as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Despite such deviation, the directors
believe that vesting such roles in Mr. Tan will allow for more effective planning
and execution of business strategies of the Company. As all major decisions
are made in consultation with other members of the Board, the Company
believes that there is adequate balance of power and authority in place.

The directors believe that the Articles of Association, the scope of
responsibilities of the Audit Committee, the scope of responsibilities of the
Supervisory Committee and the codes on securities dealings by directors and
certain executives, which constitute the basis for the regular codes on
corporate governance of the Company, have covered the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. In respect of the following
areas, our internal corporate governance documents are more stringent than
the Corporate Governance Code:

1. In addition to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, the Company has also established the Strategic
Development and Investment Committee (the “SDIC").

2. All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Liu Zheng, the Chairman of the committee,
holds the relevant professional qualification or professional knowledge
related to accounting or financial management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include, among other things, formulating
the Company’s overall strategies, setting management targets, regulating
internal controls and financial management, and supervising the
management’s performance, while the day-to-day operations and
management are delegated by the Board to the executives of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 18 directors, whose details are set out on pages
24 to 30 of this annual report. The Board includes six executive directors, six
non-executive directors and six independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Tan Xuguang (Chairman and CEO), Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Li Dakai, Mr. Fang
Hongwei, Mr. Sun Shaojun and Mr. Zhang Quan (Executive Directors), Mr.
Chen Xuejian, Mr. Yeung Sai Hong, Mr. Julius G. Kiss, Ms. Han Xiaoqun, Mr.
Jiang Kui and Mr. Gordon Riske (Non-executive Directors), Mr. Liu Zheng, Mr.
Li Shihao, Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Chu, Howard Ho Hwa, Mr. Zhang Zhenhua and
Mr. Li Luwen (Independent Non-executive Directors).

The Company has formulated and implemented a “Diversity Policy regarding
Members of the Board of Directors” to support the attainment of strategic
goals and the needs for sustainable development. The composition of the
Board of Directors will be based on a range of diversity elements, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Final decisions
will be made based upon the merits of the individuals and his or her
contributions to be made to the Board of Directors.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers each of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent. The Board considers that both Mr. Liu Zheng and
Mr. Li Shihao satisfy the independence requirements under Rule 3.13 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules, other than and despite the fact that they have been
serving as non-executive Directors prior to their appointment as independent
non-executive Directors, for the following reasons:

(@) they were initially appointed as Directors to fulfil the requirements of the
minimum number of independent Directors of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange upon the listing of the A Shares, and have since been
independent Directors of the Company (under the requirements of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange);
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(b)  they have not been engaged in the day-to-day management of the
Company and have always acted as independent non-executive Directors
only. For so long as they have been Directors, they have only given
opinions and voted at Board meetings as if they were independent non-
executive Directors. They have not had any other role within the
Company; and

(c)  they could each have given a confirmation on terms of those required by
Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules (other than that they are non-
executive Directors) as at (i) the time of their respective appointment,
and (ii) the end of each of the past financial years since their
appointments.

The Board has notified each of the directors and supervisors in advance that
they should not trade in the securities of the Company within the period as
stipulated under the Listing Rules. All directors and supervisors confirmed that
they were in compliance with the Listing Rules in this respect.

Other than their working relationships with the Company, none of the
directors, supervisors or the senior management has any financial, business or
family relationship or any relationship in other material aspects with each
other.

Other than the service contracts entered into by them or as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, none of the directors or the supervisors has any personal
and substantive interest, direct or indirect, in the material contracts entered
into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during 2013.

Each of the executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors was appointed for a term from 29 June 2012 to 28 June
2015, except that Mr. Gordon Riske, a non-executive director, was appointed
at the Company’s annual general meeting on 24 June 2013 for a term from
24 June 2013 to 28 June 2015, and Mr. Liu Zheng and Mr. Li Shihao
(independent non-executive directors) were appointed on the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2012 for a term of office from 29
June 2012 to 29 April 2013, and Mr. Liu Zheng and Mr. Li Shihao have since
continued to holdover as directors pursuant to the laws of the PRC.

The Company attached great importance to the continuous professional
development of the directors and paid close attention to and actively
organized relevant trainings for the directors. Each of the directors of the
Company actively participated in various special trainings in respect to
corporate governance and directors’ responsibilities in full compliance with
Code A6.5 of Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Hong Kong Listing Rules and regulatory requirements of the PRC.
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In 2013, the Company held 10 Board meetings. The principal activities of the
Board in 2013 were as follow:

o Review of the annual and interim results of the Company;

o Review of the annual profit distribution, interim dividend and the 2012
final dividend distribution proposal.

The total remuneration of the directors in 2013, including the basic salary,
performance-linked salary, incentive-linked salary and discretionary bonus,
amounted to approximately RMB7.2 million. Independent non-executive
directors were only entitled to receive director’s fees but not other salary or
remuneration. For details of the remuneration of directors, please refer to Note
V.26 to the financial statements of the Company.

AubpiT COMMITTEE
An Audit Committee has been established by the Board.

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for supervising the Company’s
internal audit system and its implementation, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system as well as auditing the major connected transactions and
proposing the engagement or removal of external auditor. It is also responsible
for the communications between the internal auditor and the external auditor
as well as review of financial information of the Company and the disclosure
thereof.

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors,
including Mr. Liu Zheng, Mr. Li Shihao, Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Zhang Zhenhua, Mr.
Chu, Howard Ho Hwa and Mr. Li Luwen. As Mr. Liu Zheng has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters, he acts as the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are aligned with the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the period. Details of the
attendance are set out on page 75 of this annual report.

The major work accomplished by the Audit Committee during the year are as
follows:

o Review of the annual, interim financial statements of the Group, as well
as the management recommendations furnished by the external auditors
and responses from the Company’s management;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

o Review of the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group
and related matters;

o Assist the Board to monitor the Group’s internal audit;
o Determine the remuneration of external audit service provider.

Throughout the period under review, the Audit Committee discharged its
responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial results and internal
control system of the Group.

In accordance with the requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the
Audit Committee has reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The auditors of the Company have audited the financial statements and have
issued an unqualified auditors’ report.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

The Strategic Development and Investment Committee (“SDIC”) has been
established by the Board.

The SDIC is principally responsible for examining and reviewing the Company’s
strategic plans, monitoring the implementation of strategic planning, and
facilitating timely adjustments to the Company’s strategies and governance
structure.

The SDIC currently comprises Mr. Tan Xuguang (Chairman of the Board and of
the SDIC), Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Li Dakai, Mr. Fang Hongwei, Mr. Sun Shaojun,
Mr. Zhang Quan, Mr. Chen Xuejian and Mr. Zhang Zhenhua.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration packages and terms of employment of directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company. The Committee also
determines the relevant remuneration policy for directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company and matters relating to their participation
in incentive schemes operated by the Company.
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During the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company
held one meeting. The first meeting of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company in 2013 was convened on 7 March 2013, during which the matters
regarding the operation incentives for senior management and core members
of the Company for year 2012 were reviewed. Mr. Tan Xuguang, Mr. Li
Luwen, Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Chu, Howard Ho Hwa, all being directors, attended
this meeting of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive director and
three independent non-executive directors, being Mr. Li Luwen (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tan Xuguang, Mr. Loh Yih and Mr. Chu,
Howard Ho Hwa.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board.

During the reporting period, the Nomination Committee of the Company held
two meetings. On 7 March 2013, the first meeting of the Nomination
Committee of the Company in 2013 was convened, during which the election
of Mr. Gordon Riske as a director of the Company, the appointment of Mr.
Kwong Kwan Tong as the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
Authorised Representative of the Company was considered. The second
meeting of the Nomination Committee of the Company in 2013 was convened
on 29 August 2013, during which the matter of “diversity policy of members
of the board” was considered. Mr. Li Luwen, Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Liu Zheng and
Mr. Zhang Zhenhua, being directors of the Company and representing all
members of the Nomination Committee, attended both meetings of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and one executive director, including Mr. Li Luwen (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Liu Zheng and Mr. Zhang
Zhenhua. The meetings of the Nomination Committee were arranged and held
on an as-needed basis. The Nomination Committee will identify qualified
candidates to fill the Board's membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will
also nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, regularly review the
composition of the Board and make suggestions as to any change in the
membership of the Board that may be required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members, with one Supervisor
being elected from the staff as a representative of employees and the other
two elected by the shareholders of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
is responsible for supervision of the Board and its members and the senior
management of the Company, so as to prevent them from abusing their
authorities and infringing the interests of the Company, its shareholders and
staff. The size and composition of the Supervisory Committee are in
compliance with the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC. The Supervisory Committee held four meetings during the year to carry
out its supervision on behalf of the shareholders in respect of the Company’s
financial matters and the lawfulness and compliance in respect of the
discharge of duties by the directors and senior management of the Company.
The members of the Supervisory Committee attended all Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company and diligently performed their supervisory
duties.
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Attendances at meetings of the Board, Supervisory Committee and special FRN EBEFg EFehBFHZEEEREN
committees (attendance in person/ number of meetings) during the year are as EEEREREAE € RBET
follows:
General Supervisory Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name %2 TN Exg EZg ERZEES
Executive Directors HITES
Tan Xuguang EBR 10/10
Xu Xinyu B®TE 2/4 10/10
Li Dakai YN 9/10M
Fang Hongwei F A 9/10Mm
Sun Shaojun HLE 8/100
Zhang Quan Kk R 2/4 9/10M
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Yeung Sai Hong 5 HEm 9/100
Chen Xugjian PR 2% 10/10
Julius G. Kiss Julius G. Kiss 1/4 9/10M
Han Xiaogun BENEE 10/10
Jiang Kui I = 8/10@
Gordon Riske (appointed on 24 June 2013) Gordon Riske(R—ZE—=%
ANAZTHM EIJ:E) 4/50
Liu Huisheng (resigned on 21 March 2013) AepR_F—=F
A=t BEE) 1/20
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Liu Zheng 2] fE 4/4 10/10 4/4
Li Shihao Fitt 5 1/4 9/10Mm 4/4
Loh Yih E ® 1/4 9/10M 3/4
Chu, Howard Ho Hwa KE#E 9/10M 4/4
Zhang Zhenhua o ¥k ZE 3/4 10/10 4/4
Li Luwen X9 4/4 9/10Mm 4/4
Supervisors 2=
Sun Chengping % ACE 4/4
Jiang Jianfang BER 3/4
Lu Wenwu B8R 4/4
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According to the requirements under Code I(d) of the Corporate Governance
Code, the attendance of alternate directors shall not be included in the
attendance of the relevant directors.

Notes:

(7) /n adaition, the director also appointed another director as his representative to attend
and vote at one board meeting on his behalf.

2) /n addiition, the director also appointed another director as his representative to attend

and vote at two board meetings on his behalf.

GENERAL MEETING AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meeting is the highest authority of the Company, providing
an opportunity for direct communications and building a sound relationship
between the Board and the shareholders of the Company. Therefore, the
Company places great attention to such meetings. In 2013, the Company
convened four general meetings. Matters reviewed and approved at the said
meetings include the following:

o the full text and summary of the 2012 annual report;

o the Directors’ Report and Supervisory Committee’s Report for 2012;

o the profit distribution proposals for 2012;

o the appointment of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as the Company’s
auditor and authorise the Board to fix their remuneration;

o the election of Mr. Gordon Riske as a director of the Company;

o overseas investments and exercise of overseas call options;

o loan financing and provision of guarantee; and

o the continuing connected transactions with connected persons.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders of the Company holding more than 10% of the shares of the
Company either individually or collectively requesting the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Article 104 of the Company’s articles of
association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to Article 76 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders of the Company who hold, individually or collectively, more than
3% of the Company’s shares shall have the right to propose a motion to the
Company for consideration at the general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders who hold, individually or collectively, more than 3% of the
Company’s shares may propose a provisional motion in writing to the Board of
Directors 16 days prior to the general meeting. Within 2 days upon the receipt
of the proposed motion, the Board of Directors shall issue a supplementary
notice of the general meeting to announce the content of the provisional
motion.

Shareholders of the Company are welcome to send their enquiries to the
Board via our Securities Department, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” in this report.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE
CANDIDATES FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the requirement of the articles of association of the Company, any
shareholder who, by itself or jointly, holding shares representing more than
3% of the voting rights of the Company for 180 days or more consecutively
shall have the right to nominate candidates for director, the number of
directors in each nomination shall not exceed one-fifth of the total number of
directors and the total number of nominees. The number of shares directly or
indirectly held by each shareholder cannot be further subdivided in order to
propose a motion by himself or jointly with other persons.

The period for service of notices in writing by shareholders to the Company of
the intention to propose a candidate for election as a director in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and of such candidate’s
consent to be elected shall be at least 7 days, which shall commence from the
day after the despatch of the notice convening the general meeting for the
election of directors and shall end on the date which is 16 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate system of
internal control to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests.

Internal control, including a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use, maintain proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication. The purpose
of such system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material mis-statement or loss, and to manage, rather than eliminate, risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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The management maintains and monitors the system of controls on an
ongoing basis.

During the year, based on the evaluations made by the management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that nothing had come to its attention to cause
the Audit Committee to believe that the system of internal control was
inadequate, and there is an ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks faced by the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MoDeEL CODE

During the year, the Company adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors aim to present the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The directors ensure that financial statements of the Group are
issued in a timely manner so that the final and interim results of the Group are
announced within the periods of three months and two months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods prescribed under the Listing Rules.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external
auditors, Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. The directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Group and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. They are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. The statement of the Auditors about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as auditors of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2013, an amount of RMB11.6
million was paid/payable to Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP for their audit
service.
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AUDITORS  REPORT

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=7 ik
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2014) Shen Zi No. 60729920 _B01

To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Weichai Power
Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2013, the consolidated and company income statements,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year 2013 and
notes to the financial statements.

I. MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements. Such
responsibility includes: (1) preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to
ensure fair representation; (2) the design, implementation and
maintenance of necessary internal controls so that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error.

ITI. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CERTIFIED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTANT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Chinese Auditing Standards issued by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements of the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and
perform the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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I1I.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2014) Shen Zi No. 60729920_B01

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the certified public accountant’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, certified public accountants consider the internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and
present fairly, in all material aspects, the consolidated and company
financial position as at 31 December 2013 and the consolidated and
company results of operations and cash flows of Weichai Power Co.,
Ltd. for the year 2013.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Zhang Fei
hinese Certified Public Accountant:
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note V 2012
ASSETS BE s =
Current assets MEEE
Cash and cash equivalents EkEe 1 19,580,127,632.91  16,726,970,096.00
Financial assets at fair value through UAREBET=BEES) 7
profit or loss FTAEHIBEN R
A= 51,077,466.30 137,050,693.51
Notes receivable FEURZ= 1 3 14,126,950,813.40 9,242,232,142.39
Accounts receivable JE IR R 4 4,440,534,339.82 4,168,525,397.14
Prepayments AN FRIAE 5 405,481,103.37 365,397,070.50
Dividends receivable FE U RE A 6 3,040,000.00 70,540,000.00
Interests receivable JFEULFI B 15,439,001.39 7,418,831.76
Other receivables ELAh R 7 382,476,843.43 444,105,891.14
Inventories 78 8 8,573,263,068.43 7,509,902,216.33
Other current assets HimehEE 9 471,818,015.98 487,991,597.21
Total current assets mENEESTT 48,050,208,285.03  39,160,133,935.98
Non-current assets IERBNE E
Available-for-sale financial assets HHESHEE 10 294,601,926.11 334,802,126.11
Long-term equity investments RERERE 11,12 7,789,229,080.64 4,885,941,806.51
Investment property A E 13 547,396,551.63 329,994,770.86
Fixed assets EEEE 14 13,149,176,100.96 11,526,489,430.20
Construction in progress TEITRE 15 3,284,090,409.80 5,175,099,417.99
Materials used in construction TREME 16 16,914.51 -
Disposal of fixed assets EEEEFE 1,267,095.38 3,493,436.95
Intangible assets B EE 17 2,273,431,309.49 2,160,257,108.86
Development expenditure FZES 17 497,418,862.34 431,692,444.28
Goodwill [EES 18 1,430,849,833.51 1,443,114,787.31
Long-term prepaid expenses RHEGEER 19 158,779,148.42 169,123,071.48
Deferred tax assets RIEAS B & 20 785,535,351.82 700,119,807.88
Other non-current assets HitIERENE E 2 259,807,862.57 100,706.28
Total non-current assets EREEESE 30,471,600,447.18 | 27,160,228,914.71
Total assets BEMAGT 78,521,808,732.21 66,320,362,850.69
The financial statements have been signed by: WMIERIRABATALES ¢

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEGHIEEEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

SHRBREA

Zhang Zhiqi

Head of accounting department:
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) BHEEaRBEXR(E)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=F+_A=+—H(AR% )

Note V 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SRR REES BER o
Current liabilities MEBE
Short-term loans ke EAfE R 22 1,245,568,357.29 2,742,091,634.05
Notes payable AN 23 6,687,151,599.77 5,244,310,106.70
Accounts payable FERTRR K 24 13,472,675,550.89  9,962,420,973.54
Advances from customers TEURGRIE 25 1,211,259,736.92 872,835,717.97
Payroll payable FEATER T M 26 1,175,313,751.59 1,026,722,757.02
Taxes payable ERFE 27 552,024,065.76 239,380,723.63
Interests payable FESFIE 28 132,089,773.25 61,680,626.43
Dividends payable FETRE A 29 43,101,211.76 33,103,222.12
Other payables H bR 30 3,398,458,815.35  2,535,764,374.58
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRIEHHIERBEE 31 352,375,772.74 352,604,906.92
Other current liabilities Httnsa i 32 1,028,305,788.79 852,860,219.00
Total current liabilities mEBESE 29,298,324,424.11  23,923,775,261.96
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term borrowings RHE 33 9,146,039,593.52  6,344,249,958.75
Bonds payable ERHES 34 3,493,858,837.76  2,691,489,273.21
Long-term payables REAERR 35 8,847,480.34 5,500,000.00
Special payables EIFEMNR 36 53,000,000.00 43,000,000.00
Long-term payroll payable £ HARE 58 T 5 37 606,487,220.23 565,056,325.46
Deferred tax liabilities FEFTERIAE 20 146,119,914.93 168,154,335.44
Other non-current liabilities HiIEmBE & 38 1,441,819,889.93 1,179,901,918.37
Total non-current liabilities ERHBESS 14,896,172,936.71  10,997,351,811.23
Total liabilities BEEE 44,194,497,360.82  34,921,127,073.19
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEMRAANTALES -

Legal Representative:

AEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEGHIEAEA

Head of accounting department:

SEEERAEA

Tan Xuguang
B

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Zhang Zhigiang
RS

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) AHEEalEXR(E)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note V

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERRRER i

Shareholders’ equity AR R i
Share capital &z 39 1,999,309,639.00
Capital reserve /N 40 703,970,229.92
Special reserve HIAHE 41 35,605,889.68
Surplus reserve kYN 42 2,683,223,334.61
Retained earnings R EEFE 43 22,264,536,818.92
Exchange differences on foreign currency INERRITE EEE

translation

36,527,719.49

e L e S e AON ] 2

1,999,309,639.00
842,375,982.05
23,089,542.52
2,300,128,466.82
19,737,619,540.81

(33,171,947.25)

Total equity attributable to the shareholders
of the parent

NSNS e £y
27,723,173,631.62

24,869,351,223.95

Minority interests DB R 6,604,137,739.77 6,529,884,553.55
Total shareholders’ equity ERERER 34,327,311,371.39  31,399,235,777.50
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMRRE R BT 78,521,808,732.21  66,320,362,850.69
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEHMERBIATALESE ¢
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FEGHIIEEEA: BIMEBEAFA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
B BRIRE SRR

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 ZF#R



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT B HMiER

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=—FE(ARYTT)

Note V 2013 2012
MR === —E——fF
Revenue HEBA a4 58,311,713,430.31  48,165,394,849.63
Less: Cost of sales B 44 46,287,777,066.90 38,775,044,121.79
Taxes and surcharges ey il 45 272,444,023.67 187,228,738.22
Distribution and selling expenses HEBA 46 3,152,780,574.25 2,433,478,520.89
General and administrative expenses BIEEA 47 3,856,302,328.23 3,232,666,367.18
Finance expenses B 75 & B 48 216,666,103.77 (9,844,442.01)
Impairment loss of assets BEMERER 49 231,173,894.41 79,464,267.64
Add: Gain on change of fair value e AR EEEENES 50 150,137,868.78 =
Investment income wE W E 51 11,542,850.04 251,508,306.03
Incl: Share of profit of associates and He : $iBErENE
jointly controlled enterprises ERENRE
Wz 5,177,273.16 29,987,138.09
Operating profit 2 2R 4,456,250,157.90 3,718,865,581.95
Add: Non-operating income o EZEINRA 57 194,734,409.82 278,554,862.32
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINE W 53 42,238,807.13 37,606,655.54
Incl: Loss on disposal of non-current Hep : JERBEERE
assets [eEN 16,554,944.38 18,350,863.77
Total profit bRk 54 4,608,745,760.59  3,959,813,788.73
Less: Income tax expenses B TS E R 55 791,109,685.09 725,547,240.05
Net profit Ve ZalbE 3,817,636,075.50 3,234,266,548.68
Net profit attributable to the shareholders — EZEBHAEFHA FIRY 5 495 H 8
of the parent 3,570,791,384.62 2,990,996,934.91
Minority interests DEIRR B 246,844,690.88 243,269,613.77
Earnings per share (sl 6
Basic earnings per share ARG 56 1.79 1.50
Diluted earnings per share wrE ek N/A N/A
TEA TiEA
The financial statements have been signed by: ISR BIATALESE ¢

Legal Representative:

AEREA ¢

Tan Xuguang
EER

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Principal in charge of accounting:
FEGHIEAEA :

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIEE

HRRENDBRDBBRAT

Head of accounting department:

RIBEREA -

Zhang Zhigiang
SRR



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note V
MisER ==

SHmEER(E)

=E=FE(ARET)

2013

Other comprehensive income

Those other comprehensive income not
to be reclassified into profit or loss
in subsequent periods
Share of investee’s other comprehensive
income not to be reclassified into
profit or loss in subsequent
periods using the equity method

Changes arising from re-measuring
net assets or net liabilities of defined
benefit plan

Those other comprehensive income

to be reclassified into profit or loss

after meeting certain criteria in

subsequent periods

Share of investee’s other comprehensive
income to be reclassified into

Hitkra W

g est iR T E DR
RS EARS Was

IR AR E R TER
RABM ARG R
TREED FEERN
Hitira s =es
KD 3R

BT EREX mat S
FREFEEERN

LA & st BT R 3R E

AR E D B

HAi4R 6 Was

RIREREAZ B R
REBMUIAR SR

(43,371,856.00)

15,181,649.92

profit or loss after meeting certain TE i B AR TE (-1 I
criteria in subsequent periods using BES AR EAD
the equity method REBEFPMZERR
ke (6,377,070.55) (40,559,590.11)
Exchange differences on foreign currency INERBA TS SRR YT = R
translation 68,726,300.23 (247,448.64)
Gain or loss arising from change of AEEESMEEAR
fair value of available-for-sale BEZHHFKRIFGFK
financial assets B (55,420,000.00) 30,477,672.97
Net amount of items under other Hi#r e Wz=58E D5l
comprehensive income after income tax RS 2B H)F5E (21,260,976.40) (10,329,365.78)

Total comprehensive income

N S

3,796,375,099.10

3,223,937,182.90

Incl:
Total comprehensive income attributable to

Hep
FENERRRRNGS

the shareholders of the parent Was i za 3,545,949,279.75 2,980,668,778.14
Total comprehensive income attributable to  EFER D ERALEES
minority owners Wzkesa 250,425,819.35 243,268,404.76

Details of dividends payable and proposed to be paid during the year are

disclosed in Note V.43 and Note IX to these financial statements.

atements have been signed by:

FRRNREZBIRMN RS ZFBERUBFIHRERM

A A3RMIEENIFEEE -

B MERAIATALERSE ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 &R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OffixSRIEZEEHR

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=—FE(ARYTT)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

BERBAIRRER
Exchange
differences on
Share Capital Special Surplus Retained foreign currency Minority
Note capital reserve reserve reserve earmnings translation Subtotal interests Total equity
i3 R BALR SRk EHOE AVBAE NEERTEER Mt DERFRE  RREESH
I, Atbeginning of year - FEEE 1999,309639.00 84237598205  23,089,54252 2,300,128466.82 19,737,619,54081  (33,171,947.25) 24,869,351,223.95 6,529,884,553.55 31,399,235,777.50
Il Movements in current year Z AEEREHEE
() Net profit (=)EHE - - - - 3570,791,384.62 - 357079138462 246,844,690.88 3,817,636,075.50
() Other comprehensive income: (Z)Efsaka hv57 - (94541,771.61) = = - 69699666.74  (24,:842,10487) 3,581,12847  (21,260,976.40)
Total comprehensive income FalaeE - (954,77161) - - 357079138462  69,699,666.74 354594927975 25042581935 3,796,375,099.10
(1) Injection and reduction (Z)RERAR
HYER
1. Acquistion of minority 1. BB EHRE
interests and others EaRit - (43:863980.52) = = = - (43863980.52) 1401394740  (29,850,033.12)
2. Capitalinjection from 2. RERAEAR
shareholders - - - - - - - 6790988800  67,909,888.00
(IV) Profit appropriation and (mFEIE
distribution
1. Appropriation of surplus 1. RRBBAE
reserve - - - 383,094867.79  (383,094,867.79) - - - -
2. Distribution to owners 2 HRRNAE  BVA = = - - (659,772,180.87) - (659,772,180.87) (261,932,300.73)  (921,704,481.60)
3. Others 3. Hft - = = = (1,007,057.85) = (1,007,057.85) (335,685.95)  (1,342,743.80)
(V) Special reserve (R)25GR
1. Appropriation during 1. KERR
the year ava4t = - 4303895635 = = - 430389535 2538353552 7342249187
2. Used during the year 2 REER avat = - (35522,609.19 = = - (35522609.19)  (21212,017.37)  (56,734,626.56)
Il At end of period = REERRE 1999,309,639.00  703970229.92  35605,889.68 2,683,223334.61 22,264536,81892  36,527,71949 27,723,173,631.62  6,604,137,739.77 34,327,311371.39
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEMERAATALERS ¢
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREJA FESTIIEAEA : BIMEBAERA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang

EB BREE RER

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EqQuiTy (CONTINUED) BHBRREREHER(E)
Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) ZE-ZFE(ARKT)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

GENS L IRRER
Exchange
differences on
Share Capital Special Surplus Retained  foreign currency Minority
Note capital reserve reserve reserve earnings translation Subtotal interests  Total equity
fit R BANE HERE BBOE FARAE NEERAEEE Mt DERFRE  RREERH
I, Atbeginning of year - FEFIHE 1,666,091,366.00  1,520,836,404.54 - 193577454304 17,813,666,654.13  (32,925,707.62) 22,903,443,260.09 5999,319,552.01 28,902,762,812.10
Il Movements in current year — REEREDLE
) Net pro (-)3iE - - - - 299099693491 © S09%.53491  M326961377 323426654868
() Othercomprehensiencome (=) &fiakE  EVS7 - (1008191714 - 3 - (M62983)  (103281677) (120901)  (10329,36578)
Total comprehensive income FAkzeE - (10,081917.14) - - 2,990,996,934.91 (246,239.63) 2,980,668,778.14  243,268404.76  3,223937,182.90
(1) Injection and reduction (Z)RREAR
HYER
1. Injecton 1. BERABK - 2 - = 4 - - 26916527 2169291652
2. Acquisition of subsidiaries 2. BETAR - - - - - - - 5007261125 520072,611.25
3. Disposal of subsidiaries 3 RETAR - (5,577,530.56) = = = = (5577,530.56)  (214,169,122.67)  (219,746,653.23)
4. Acquistton of minority 4 WEDERR
interests and others EaRit - (40475,891.80) = = = - (40,475,891.80) 13423750 (40,341,654.30)
(1v) Profit appropriation (m)FAAE
1. Appropriation of surplus 1. ROBBLNE
eserve - - - 36435392378 (36435392378 - - - -
2. Distribution to owners 2 HREEAE  EV43 3332827300 = = - (699,758,373.50) - (366,540,100.50) (238,228,594.64)  (604,768,695.14)
3. Others 3. Eft - = = = (2,931,750.95) = (2,931,750.95) (310,583.66)  (3,242,334.61)
(V) Special reserve (2)5RER
1. Appropriation during 1. KERR
the year av4 = - 7382487550 = = - 7382487550 9172,766.59  82,997,642.09
2. Used during the year 2. REER AV = - (50,735332.99) = = - (5073533298  (6,303,88286)  (57,039,215.84)
(V) Others ()Ef
1. Put options in relation to 1. BYERR
minorty interests 3t
HESE RV - (622,325082.99) - - - - (622,325082.99) - (6223250899
I Atend of year = REERRE 199930963900  842,375982.05  23,089,542.52 2,300,128466.82 19,737,619,54081  (33,171,947.25) 24,869,351,223.95 6,529,884,553.55 31,399,235,777.50
The financial statements have been signed by: BIFSMAREBIA T ALTEE ¢

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

AEREKA TEGHIEREEA: SIHBREA ¢

Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
BRI = SRR
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT BHRERER

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=—FE(ARYTT)

Note V 2013 2012
(S —E—= =

I.  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - BEERPELENRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sales of goods HEEM - RHSH
or rendering of services e 40,518,090,662.81  36,928,435,072.37
Refunds of taxes hEllsopik=$7de 464,202,433.01 451,351,512.61
Other cash received relating to B ot A &R B
operating activities EHEMNIRS 58 1,015,973,997.39 833,805,569.98
Subtotal of cash inflows from LETEENIRSIMA
operating activities NEt 41,998,267,093.21  38,213,592,154.96
Cash paid for goods and services BEEm  BXYB
XA 24,562,371,492.44  23,886,030,301.16
Cash paid to and on behalf of XTI AR AT
employees XMeBRE 4,314,619,005.32  3,118,119,079.12
Cash paid for all types of taxes XMHBEBE 3,127,928,128.57  4,173,844,191.39
Other cash paid relating to X AT E b ERAC R )
operating activities BRNE 58 4,224,937,704.95 4,279,429,993.21
Subtotal of cash outflows from TR ENIR S
operating activities NEt 36,229,856,331.28  35,457,423,564.88
Net cash flows from operating REEBEENR
activities &% AR 59 5,768,410,761.93  2,756,168,590.08
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING — - REBHELNRS
ACTIVITIES e
Cash received from sale of investments W E KRR & 442,098,940.00 299,120,035.60
Cash received from return on SR & e W B Y
investments Re 23,364,660.73 49,276,274.05
Net cash received from disposal of BRETFARIMEMER
subsidiaries and other business units BRI IR £ %R 59 - 359,226,950.65
Net cash received from disposal of REBEEE « B
fixed assets, intangible assets and BEMEMRAEE
other long-term assets W Bl Y ER &% 88 3,988,631.77 4,924,135.19
Other cash received relating to YR H h 348 &R B)
investing activities BHENERE 58 291,332,634.65 176,385,100.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing REZBHRERA
activities et 760,784,867.15 888,932,495.49
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed BRETEE  &F
assets, intangible assets and other BEMEMRREE
long-term assets XAEHERES 1,468,379,714.85 | 2,218,844,620.94

ash paid for acquisition of investments RELZHORS 3,282,213,467.01 4,454,745,018.48
ash paid for acquisition of BGF AR REMEE
iaries and other business units B T HY IR & F R
ng to investing ST E A ER AR E)
R &

4,750,593,181.86

(3,989,808,314.71)

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

SHREREXR(1E)
—FE-=FRE(ARET)

2013
—g-=

Note V
MR

lll. - CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING =
ACTIVITIES

BEEHELN
Rens

Cash received from capital contributions R R E U EI )R & 67,909,888.00 79,972,299.59
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries A . FRFIRYK
from capital contributions DERERE
of minority owners W B 9 H s 67,909,888.00 79,972,299.59
Cash received from borrowings REEFRKRE RS 4,432,353,455.64  9,370,778,476.95
Cash received from issuance of bonds BITEFURENRS 797,600,000.00 =
Other cash received relating to B H b RS E R &)
financing activities BRANHRE 58 459,500.00 20,317,377.78
Subtotal of cash inflows from BEEHREAA
financing activities NEE 5,298,322,843.64  9,471,068,154.32
Cash repayments of borrowings BEEHXNNES 3,267,424,782.30  2,550,992,146.65

Cash paid for distribution of dividends
or profits and for interest expenses
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners

2 ECRCH ~ R E

flasinRe
#eo - FRARZ(#

1,324,322,808.09

871,001,617.44

for distribution of dividends DEREE AR
or profits by subsidiaries T~ FE 247,242,823.68 256,463,938 53
Other cash paid relating to financing X EAMEEEES
activities BRENRE 58 11,913,846.03 3,635,746.36
Subtotal of cash outflows from FEEFHHELSRL
financing activities et 4,603,661,436.42  3,425,629,510.45
Net cash flows from financing activities BERPELNRSE
mEFRE 694,661,407.22 6,045,438,643.87
IV. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE o EREES)E
RATE ON CASH HEHTE 24,526,088.54 (28,014,679.10)
V. NET INCREASE IN CASH AND h RERBEEEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS IR INER 2,497,789,942.98 781,791,157.68
Add: Cash and cash equivalents e FNRERES
at beginning of year EEMHE 14,099,151,353.22 ~ 13,317,360,195.54
VI. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N FRESRREZEED
AT END OF YEAR BA%E 59 16,596,941,296.20 = 14,099,151,353.22
The financial statements have been signed by: WIERIRABAATALESE ¢

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEGHIEEEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

Head of accounting department:

BHRBREA

Zhang Zhigiar
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BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

—E—=ZFf+_A=1+—H(ARE¥T)

Note XI 2012
ASSETS B'E FieE+— bk 2
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BEEBES 13,384,081,420.60  11,172,638,035.07
Notes receivable FEINE & 9,766,230,445.12 7,093,096,681.29
Accounts receivable FEUER R 1 244,988,175.52 375,556,978.89
Prepayments TaRFRIE 83,071,374.23 105,117,029.08
Dividends receivable FEUTAR R 43,075,603.72 99,126,103.69
Interests receivable FEUF B 14,815,594.44 7,331,318.68
Other receivables EAtb fEIGK 2 1,762,289,386.87 1,156,166,626.23
Inventories g3 1,979,350,646.02 1,445,500,066.07
Other current assets HEtmEh&EE - 20,000,000.00
Total current assets MEEESET 27,277,902,646.52  21,474,532,839.00
Non-current assets IEmBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 235,680,000.00 300,880,000.00
Long-term equity investments RAARRIEIR B 3.4 7,701,961,114.30 6,596,836,401.12
Investment property & B E 1,055,234,504.30 697,478,506.43
Fixed assets BEE&EE 2,612,062,852.50 2,223,533,258.74
Construction in progress TR 1,724,376,418.56  2,772,786,478.08
Disposal of fixed assets EE B EFIE 328,595.31 230,232.94
Intangible assets EmAE 341,165,627.61 376,157,548.24
Goodwill EES 579,145,043.76 579,145,043.76
Deferred tax assets EIEFTS B E 293,625,964.26 238,352,408.49
Other non-current assets HEtIEmEEE 1,073,203,388.00 =
Total non-current assets EREEEAFT 15,616,783,508.60  13,785,399,877.80
Total assets BEMEGT 42,894,686,155.12  35,259,932,716.80
The financial statements have been signed by: WMIEHMERABATALESE ¢

Legal Representative:

AEREA

Tan Xuguang
D)

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEGHIEAEA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

HRRENDBRDBBRAT

Head of accounting department:

EEEERAEA

Zhang Zhigiang
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

b3
8

[

<

=

afEx (&)

E = F A AZ T A CARKT)

2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SERREES [ Sy
Current liabilities nEaE
Notes payable EREE 4,937,793,613.31 3,485,391,961.16
Accounts payable FERTARER 5,629,108,204.84  2,970,489,343.45
Advances from customers TEWGRIA 76,916,612.37 56,179,991.78
Payroll payable JFEE A3 Bk T 35 543,200,626.47 495,341,647 .41
Taxes payable eI E 115,485,608.69 55,958,879.84
Interests payable FERTFIE 54,408,333.43 54,408,333.39
Other payables H e TR 1,894,124,012.04 1,793,244,973.97
Other current liabilities Hittn#aE 576,000,000.00 454,290,000.00
Total current liabilities B BEEET 13,827,037,011.15 9,365,305,131.00
Non-current liabilities JEmEaE
Bonds payable R ES 2,695,720,748.07  2,691,489,273.21
Special payables HIAE R 30,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities BRIEFTISH B & 17,833,800.60 27,613,800.60
Other non-current liabilities HEmIEmEaE 213,764,174.97 161,510,133.16
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEEF 2,957,318,723.64  2,900,613,206.97
Total liabilities BE&F 16,784,355,734.79  12,265,918,337.97
Shareholders’ equity I ER A
Share capital ¥ 1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00
Capital reserve BARRNIE 1,019,475,033.38 1,081,878,661.17
Special reserve HIAE 21,319,709.95 13,776,537.65
Surplus reserve RBHBATE 2,683,223,334.61 2,300,128,466.82
Retained earnings R BLAE 20,387,002,703.39  17,598,921,074.19
Total shareholders’ equity MR & 5T 26,110,330,420.33  22,994,014,378.83

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BERBRES AT

42,894,686,155.12

35,259,932,716.80

BITSIRRAIATALERS :

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEGHIFEEEA:

Head of accounting department:

EHHBREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Zhang Zhigiang
IR

Tan Xuguang

il

EE)
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INCOME STATEMENT

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note XI 2012
6 —T-CF
Revenue EEI A 5 22,973,110,876.17 17,451,908,953.44
Less: Cost of sales o5 N 5 16,078,835,091.00  11,989,402,209.33

Taxes and surcharges BEN S K 155,819,284.76 99,924,824.59
Distribution and selling expenses HEBA 1,248,808,145.49 883,655,644.27
General and administrative expenses EEEA 1,726,523,493.96 1,477,284,081.59
Finance expenses &R (127,872,774.26) (96,623,855.47)
Impairment loss of assets BEREEX (29,289,088.40) (11,114,406.48)
Add: Investment income oo B 6 426,997,138.98 974,160,222.50
Incl: Share of profit of associates and Hep : 5B
jointly controlled enterprises HERER
wE W 15,263,789.40 53,592,927.19
Operating profit =S| 4,347,283,862.60 4,083,540,678.11
Add: Non-operating income hn s SN 68,568,732.41 67,049,794.20
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINE W 18,660,896.21 12,535,971.62
Incl: Loss on disposal of non-current Hep : SERBEERE
assets E=ES 6,293,184.86 2,283,556.49
Total profit FE4azE 4,397,191,698.80 4,138,054,500.69
Less: Income tax expenses T FTS R E B 566,243,020.94 494,515,262.93

Net profit

JF A

3,830,948,677.86

3,643,539,237.76

The financial statements have been signed by:

I RANTALES :

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:
FEGHIIEATA

Head of accounting department:

RIBEARA -

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
B RRIE s SRR

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.
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INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED) fEER(E)
Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) ZE-ZFE(ARKT)

Note XI 2012
FieEt+— —T-TF
Other comprehensive income HAbkr & W
Those other comprehensive income to be LA et ERREm R iR E
reclassified into profit or loss after 1R 5 B AR 1B
meeting certain criteria in subsequent H AR A ek
periods
Share of investee’s other comprehensive LR A ZE TR
income to be reclassified into RE BRI ST ER
profit or loss after meeting certain TE R B A TE 1B
criteria in subsequent periods using HES AR EAD
the equity method FEWETERR
k= (6,377,070.55) (40,559,590.11)
Gain or loss arising from change of AHEESMEEAR
fair value of available-for-sale BEZEHEKNFIEK
financial assets RS (55,420,000.00) 31,280,000.00
Net amount of items under other Hibira W a=gEE DR
comprehensive income after income tax B S 218 R F58 (61,797,070.55) (9,279,590.11)
Total comprehensive income RE W EEE 3,769,151,607.31 3,634,259,647.65
The financial statements have been signed by: ISR BATALESE ¢
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FEEHIEREEA : SEHEEEA -
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
B BRIRE SR A58
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MRSRIEREIME

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=—FE(ARYTT)
Share capital  Capital reserve Special reserve  Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
R& AR G BROE AAAE RRERAT
. Atbeginning of year - FEFBE 1999,309,639.00 - 1,081,878,661.17 1377653765 2,300,128466.82  17,598,921,074.19  22,994,014,378.83
Il Movements in current year = MNEEREHLE
() Nt Profit (=)FHE = o - - 383094867786  3,830,948,677.86
(I) Other comprehensive income (Z) Btttz Algs - (61,797,070.55) - - - (61,797,070.55)
Total comprehensive income RAlhsEs - (61,797,070.55) - - 383094867786  3,769,151,607.31
(1) Injection and reduction (Z)BRBRARBAER
1. Acquisition of minority 1 W gRRER
interests and others REM - (606,557.24) - - - (606,557.24)
(IV) Profit appropriation (m) FEE
1. Appropriation of 1 RRARLE
surplus reserve - - - 383,004867.79  (383,094,867.79) -
2. Distribution to owners 2 HRENAE = = a - (659,772,18087)  (659,772,18087)
(V) Special reserve (7)ZRkEE
1, Appropriation during 1 RERR
the year - - 14,581,295.68 - - 14,581,295.68
2. Used during the year 2 MR = = (7,038,12338) - - (7,038,12338)
Il Atend of year = REEREE 199930963900 101947503338 2131970995  2,683,203,33461 203870070339 2611033042033
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEHMERBIATALESE ¢
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FERTIIEARA BIEEAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
EEH B RE = SRR
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IRRIERZLEER(IE)
—FE-=FRE(ARET)

Share capital ~ Capital reserve Special reserve  Surplus reserve  Retained earnings Total equity
R& R0 G BROE AARAE REERA
. Atbeginning of year — KEEHRE 1,666,091,366.00  1,091,158,251.28 = 1,935774543.04  15019494133.71  19,712,518,294.03
Il Movements in current year = AEEEESGE
() Nt Profit (=) F7l - - - - 364353923776 3,643,539,231.76
(I Other comprehensive income (Z) Bttt A dgs - (9,279,590.11) - - - (9,279,590.11)
Total comprehensive income EAlsEs — (9,279,590.11) - - 364353923776 3,634,259,647.65
(1) Profit appropriation (2 HEAE
1. Appropriation of 1 ERRALE
surplus reserve - - - 364,353,923.78 (364,353,923.78) -
2. Distribution to owners 2 HRENHAR 333,218,273.00 = = - (699,758,37350)  (366,540,100.50)
(IV)Special reserve (Im) 25
1. Appropriation during 1. RERE
the year - - 16,884,507.76 - - 16,884,507.76
2. Used during the year 2L KERR - = (3,107,970.11) - - (3,107,970.11)
Il Atend of year = REERRE 1,999,309,639.00  1,081,878,661.17 13,776,537.65  2,300,128466.82  17,598921,074.19  22,994,014,378.83
The financial statements have been signed by: IS MARBIAT ALTEE ¢

Legal Representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

EESHIEAEA

Head of accounting department:

EERERA SRBREA

Tan Xuguang
BEY

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Zhang Zhigiang
SRR
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RERER

—F=FE(AR%T)

Note XI

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales of goods

— WEEDEER
EE 7 //ILE

HERm - RHSH

2013
faE+— —e-=#

or rendering of services WEERE 20,961,498,306.05  18,195,267,445.46
Other cash received relating to U B E b B AR 2 E &)

operating activities REANS S 853,122,007.76 573,950,900.41
Subtotal of cash inflows from REETEBR A

operating activities et 21,814,620,313.81  18,769,218,345.87
Cash paid for goods and BEEMm - BXSH

services B E 12,748,123,078.85  12,336,710,009.33
Cash paid to and on behalf of KB TARBBT

employees XAERE 1,169,201,029.61  1,123,697,115.38
Cash paid for all types of taxes XN ERHE 1,857,033,543.88 3,152,458,869.03
Other cash paid relating to X E A BT R B

operating activities RENRE 1,416,128,073.88 916,329,289.63
Subtotal of cash outflows from mEEBHR LR

operating activities NaF 17,190,485,726.22  17,529,195,283.37
Net cash flows from RETHELENRS

operating activities &R 7 4,624,134,587.59  1,240,023,062.50

The financial statements have been signed by: IS MERBAT ATERE ¢

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

E = u-I—IﬂEEE A

Head of accounting department:

SARBRAEA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Zhang Zhigiang
IL:‘§§

Tan Xuguang
D

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BenReaxk (&)
ZE =FE(ARKET)

Note Xl 2012
FieEt+— —T-TF
. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING = RABPELN
ACTIVITIES Rin s
Cash received from sale of investments REIR SRR 372,067,880.00 504,419,500.00
Cash received from return on ERAS 1A W B )
investments Re 304,841,625.00 383,424,824.31
Net cash received from disposal of REEEEE
fixed assets, intangible assets and B AEMA MR
other long-term assets AEREINR S FHE 160,978.07 683,656.80
Other cash received relating to HE| H A B B E B
investing activities BRANR S 11,792,740.80 28,369,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from REZHRERA
investing activities dia; 688,863,223.87 916,896,981.11
Cash paid for acquisition of BRETEE
fixed assets, intangible assets and B EEMAE MR
other long-term assets BEXNNRE 450,817,315.87 803,435,184.34
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REXNMHRS 2,266,174,407.00 348,716,100.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from REEBR DML
investing activities /NG 2,716,991,722.87  1,152,151,284.34
Net cash flows from REEFHEENRS
investing activities B (2,028,128,499.00)  (235,254,303.23)
The financial statements have been signed by: ISR BIATALESE ¢

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang

R BEE

Principal in charge of accounting:
TEER

tTEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

Head of accounting department:

BIBEREA -

Zhang Zhigiang
SR8
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED) REmREsX(E)

Year 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=—FE(ARYTT)
Note Xl 2013 2012
MEE+— —E—=F —E——F
ll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING = SHRPEENRS
ACTIVITIES e
Cash paid for distribution of dividends PECRRA - RSB
or profits and for interest expenses FEXFERE 792,063,438.28 481,192,792.92
Other cash paid relating to RHEAMIREEED
financing activities RENH S 8,713,846.03 -
Subtotal of cash outflows from FAEDRLAH
financing activities et 800,777,284.31 481,192,792.92
Net cash flows from SEERPELNRE
financing activities EFE (800,777,284.31)  (481,192,792.92)
IV. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE &~ EXEHY
RATE ON CASH ReP e (15,988.89) (322,977.63)
V. NET INCREASE IN CASH AND i AeRAeSEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS AN 1,795,212,815.39 523,252,988.72
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m: FIRE MRS
at beginning of year EEVHE 9,457,082,461.58  8,933,829,472.86
VI. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N FRAE KA SEY
AT END OF YEAR BRER 8 11,252,295,276.97 9,457,082,461.58
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEHMRBATALTESE -
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA ¢ FEEHILEAEA FEHHEEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
BN e R0
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I. CORPORATE BACKGROUND — ~ RSB INE]

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock limited
company jointly established by Weifang Diesel Engine Factory (#th4e
JHMRR), as the primary promoter, together with other promoters, upon
approval by People’s Government of Shandong Province with document
Lu Zheng Gu Zi No. [2002] 64 Shandong Province Joint Stock Limited
Company Approval Certificate (8 & F[2002]6457 LI E A B R A Al
HEfEFEE). It obtained its legal business licence from the Administration
for Industry and Commerce of Shandong Province on 23 December
2002, with an original registered capital of RMB215 million.

In October 2007, Weifang Diesel Engine Factory was converted into
Weichai Group Holdings Limited (#4512 A% & [EHBR /A &) upon approval
by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the People’s Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Guo
Zi Qi Gai Han No. [2007] 45 (B [EI& {2k K[2007]455%) titled “Approval
Concerning the Conversion of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory into
Weichai Group Holdings Limited (K8 #ELy S 1% R A e S i &=
AR A REHLE) ) and the Administration for Industry and Commerce of
Weifang City.

In March 2004, the Company conducted a public offer in Hong Kong of
overseas listed foreign shares (H Shares) of ordinary shares of RMB1.00
each to global investors, totaling 126.5 million shares among which
11.5 million shares were state-owned shares, pursuant to the approval
document Zheng Jian Guo He Zi (FEE5E & ) No. [2003]44 issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. Such shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
on 31 March 2004. In April 2004, the registered capital of the Company
increased by RMB115 million in total pursuant to the public offer of
shares to global investors and consequently the accumulated paid-in
registered capital amounted to RMB330 million. The aforesaid registered
capital has been verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants
Limited (LU EJRA{EH R EEEFHAIEHFT) with asset verification
reports numbered Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (81E{=8 ) No. (2002) 3209
and Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& [E{=% ) No. (2004) 3077.

M ARHBBR AR (AT BB AQA
AR D RELUREARBKNEBRRKRT
[2002]645% 1L A BB R A AL EZE S
K B EERRIEREERABEH
fbBEAR A ERIBRBZ WM ERAF + R
2002F 12 A23HMB ILRE TETHRER
PEFEA(DEEAEENR) - REMER
A #215,000,0007T °

2007108 @ BILEAARBFRE EEE
BERZ BB EE MW K[200714557(

BB AR T T TR E R B%E
MM EE REREREBERA
E_J =]

20043 - AATMKIEF BB HFEE TR
ZESHREMNEERS F[2003)4457 8L E X
H RBEBRZEEE ARBEITHRIINET
HINERBEREEARE1.007TTH A% (H
f%) - EITEE12,6508R(EFBEEFEEMR
91,1508 0%)  WN200443831H * £&F
BHMAERSARAR([EBHRAT]) £
R 5 2 2004F4 8 + AARKEIREERIEE
EARBITEENIIEEMERNGTHARE
115,000,0007T * EEEZMN R EMERE
458 5 AR #330,000,0007T ° | #it 7E
BEAREINRIERMEARE TSI EISAT
2 BIA B E{E5F(2002) 32095 & & E{=5
F(2004) 30775 B AL E T ARE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I. CORPORATE BACKGROUND (CONTINUED) —~ RS ENBER(EE)

On 30 March 2007, China Securities Regulatory Commission issued
Zheng Jian Fa Hang Zi (F5E5%%£775F) No. [2007] 64 “Notice Concerning
the Approval of the Public Offer of A Shares by Weichai Power Co.,
Ltd. and Its Absorption of TAGC by way of Share Swap” to approve
the initial public offering of shares by the Company and its absorption
of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. (RN fE/TEEBE R AR A 7))
(abbreviated as “TAGC"), pursuant to which 190,653,552 new shares
were made available under the public offer to raise funds for absorption
of TAGC by way of share swap. On 23 April 2007, the Company issued
190,653,552 ordinary shares denominated in RMB (A Shares) of RMB 1
each by way of share swap, which shares were admitted for listing and
trading on Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 30 April 2007. Total capital
upon the aforesaid capital increase by way of share swap amounted to
520,653,552 shares with a total registered capital of RMB520,653,552,
which has been verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants
Limited (LR IE)RF{E B R EESFTAIEHAT) with asset verification
reports numbered Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& 1E{=% ) No. (2007) 3008.
Upon completion of the absorption of TAGC by way of share swap, the
shares of TAGC and its capacity as a legal person were both cancelled.

In accordance with the resolution of the second extraordinary general
meeting in 2008 and the amended Articles, on 16 December 2008, the
Company transferred 312,392,131 shares representing RMB312,392,131
from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon which the total
capital was 833,045,683 shares and total registered capital was
RMB833,045,683. The transfer has been verified by Shandong Zheng
Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (IWFRIEJRF{ZARE TS TAES
Ffr) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& 1E{2% ) No. (2008)
3046.

In accordance with the resolution of the first extraordinary general
meeting in 2010 and the amended Articles, on 6 December 2010, the
Company transferred 833,045,683 shares representing RMB833,045,683
from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon which the total capital
was 1,666,091,366 shares. The transfer has been verified by Shandong
Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (LU IE)RFI{E AR E TS RIS
#&FFT) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& [E{£%=) No. (2011)
3006.

HRRENDBRDBBRAT

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

20079F3A30H  FEIBSFEEEREEE
B T 58 BE 317 (2007164 5% B 1
LB HIRMD AR A R AR ITARE AT
WEHMAEREEBRMHARARNE
MY OEARD R E R ARBITREERR
A B AE R B B R D B BR A R (7
HIAAIE]) - AREITHEIAR190,653,552
f& - AR U E O 8 X JE © 2007 64
HA238 © N2 FAREE1T7190,653,552 % &
BEEARBITHNARBEBR(AR)
WH2007F 48308 @ BEEFRIFESRR
SHEMRS o Ll IRI%E 1% /) RN
/520,653,552f% ' FMEABLB R ARK
520,653,5527T * &L R IERMEEREE
SRS FT AR EE5F(2007) 300855% 5
BIREE T URE - LIRS GEMENIETE
A& - SAUERR D R AUE AN B FES o

2008F 12 A 16 H * A QX AR 152008 F 5
“RERBRRANSREMNEREERED
BME AEARHEEEFMERARYE
312,392,1317¢C * #EANARA312,392,1318% -
4 12 48 i% A<833,045,683 % + skt & AN 4E
A AR 833,045,683 T | ait #8118 E K
LR IERMNEBREESETAIEHMAR
IE{Z525F(2008) 3046575 A3k & & T LA

%0
Az

201012 A6H * A ARIRIE2010FFE—IX
FRRRRASARNBEHEERENATE - B
B RN TR ST it & A A R 833,045,683
JT -+ 38 NR% ZN833,045,683 % » B 14 A%
7K1,666,091,366 4% o | 7l #1% & A 4K |1 B
ERFMEAEREE SR EBMABRERER
F(2011)2530065% 5 & TR 5 & T IABRE ©



87 5 ¥R R it 5E (78)
ZE-=F+-A=+—-—H(AR#Kx)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I. CORPORATE BACKGROUND (CONTINUED) — ~ MR SENER (F8)

In accordance with the resolution of the annual general meeting 2011
and the amended Articles, on 29 June 2012, the Company transferred
333,218,273 shares representing RMB333,218,273 from the retained
earnings to registered capital, upon which the total capital was
1,999,309,639 shares. The transfer has been verified by Shandong Zheng
Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (LR IEJRF{EHBREE SRS
Ff) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& IE{Z8 =) No. (2012)
1013.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued
by the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. As of 31 December
2013, the registered capital of the Company was RMB1,999,309,639.
Please refer to Note V.39 for the share capital structure.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate
parent company of the Group respectively.

The registered address of the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section
A, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development
Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province. It is not subject to any duration
of operation. The Company operates in the transportation equipment
manufacturing industry. The approved scope of operations of the
Company covers: Design, development, production, sale, repair, import
and export of diesel engines and auxiliary products; automobile (except
sedans), automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components
and other automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors,
hydraulic valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting
and casting products of hydraulic components; technical consultation
and technical services (should hold operating permit(s) for operations
requiring administrative permission).

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of
the Company on 28 March 2014. Pursuant to the Articles of Association,
these financial statements will be put forth to the general meeting for
consideration and approval.

20126 2908 + ARARIRE2011FKREE
FRGAZMERBRERNBRT - RS
FE e IR & AN A R#333,218,273 7T
8 NAR AN 333,218,273 /% » EFE B AR A
1,999,309,639% o it % 4% & AR 4% |1 5 IF
BMEERETESTMESUEEERT
(2012)2810135 B &S & T UARRE o

ARARFAETARBEBARKEKIEII L
MHNEHBRE 2 BIEFIESHR S AT
ERBARGHAER R A LM - KR2013
F12A318 ' ARAlFMEABARE
1,999,309,6397T + B U & RAX A 418 &
FH 39
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RAE -

AR R AR DR M A (2 7 LU R A ST T =
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HIRR | - RRRMBITRE AR BERRE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
1.

Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard
issued in February 2006 and specific accounting standards,
implementation guidance, interpretations and other relevant
provisions issued and amended subsequently by the Ministry
of Finance (the “MOF") (collectively referred to as “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

In preparing these financial statements, all the assets (other than
certain financial instruments) are carried at historical cost. If the
assets are impaired, corresponding provisions for impairment shall
be made according to relevant provisions.

Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises

The financial statements present, fairly and fully, the financial
position of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2013
and the results of operations and the cash flows for year 2013 in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Adoption of certain amended/new accounting
standards
In January to March 2014, the MOF formulated the “Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 39 - Fair Value
Measurement”, “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No.
40 - Joint Arrangements” and issued amendments to “Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 30 — Presentation of Financial
Statements”, “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises
No. 9 — Employee Benefits”, “Accounting Standard for Business
Enterprises No. 33 — Consolidated Financial Statements”,
“Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 2 — Long-
term equity investments”. The 6 accounting standards above
will become effective from 1 July 2014, and early adoption is
encouraged for entities listed overseas. As a locally and overseas
listed company, the Company adopted the 6 accounting standards
in its preparation of the financial statements for 2013, and
ave been made where appropriate.

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) Bt 5 #R R Bt 5 (48)
31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) FEE=F A A S A OAR I

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — - BESFHHERTIS5HLEH(E8)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

2. Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards 2. BEhxEEANZRGE)
for Business Enterprises (Continued)
Adoption of certain amended/new accounting RAE FAEaT18 i ER
standards (Continued) (&)
For the purpose of these financial statements, changes in RATBHRERME - L&A
accounting policies of the Group that correspond to changes in B SIBRARBEESFTBEE L
the accounting standards above have been dealt with pursuant to B ERBEBTERATET TR
relevant transitional provisions, and corresponding retrospective B HRELRERTEZETERH
adjustments have been made to those comparable figures to which By BET THEBEYHEE - £t
retrospective adjustments had to be made. The main effects on the SIERRBHFAEE2013F EF20124F
financial statements for 2013 and 2012 caused by the aforesaid EMBHRERNEZZEMT ¢

retrospective adjustments are set out below:

The Group REH
2013 201345

Adoption of

accounting
standards of
“Accounting
Standard for
Business Opening balance/

Opening balance/ Enterprises Incurred
Incurred No. 2 - during the year
during the year Long-term Equity following
prior to adoption Investments” adoption
HAgEEA
BRI 4 (SR RA%ELD
BREE ARG F2— R BREE A
AR IRAERED B4
Available-for-sale financial AR ESREE
assets 204,000,000.00 90,601,926.11 294,601,926.11
Long-term equity investments R HAIRIEIRE 7,879,831,006.75 (90,601,926.11) 7,789,229,080.64

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 &R




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

2. Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards 23

for Business Enterprises (Continued)

Adoption of certain amended/new accounting
standards (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

2012

Opening balance/
Incurred

during the year
prior to adoption
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Adoption of
accounting
standards of

" Accounting
Standard for
Business
Enterprises
No. 2 —
Long-term Equity
Investments”
AR
(bR
25— K
PRAESRE )

Opening balance/
Incurred
during the year

following adoption

RAREY
BREE S AE
BAR

FRARIEY
BREE ARG
TR

Available-for-sale financial Al E SR EE
assets 269,200,000.00
Long-term equity investments R HAIRIEIRE 4,951,543,932.62

65,602,126.11
(65,602,126.11)

334,802,126.11
4,885,941,806.51
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31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) s e 2 i = iy = A N Ty T
II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — - BESFHHERTIS5HLEH(E8)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

2. Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards 2. BEhxEEANZRGE)
for Business Enterprises (Continued)
Adoption of certain amended/new accounting RAE FAEaT18 i ER
standards (Continued) (&)
The Company PN
2013 20135

Adoption of
accounting
standards of
“Accounting
Standard for
Business Opening balance/

Opening balance/ Enterprises Incurred
Incurred No. 2 - during the year
during the year Long-term Equity following
prior to adoption Investments” adoption
RAgE L
BRI 4 (SR RAZFEA
BhEE A F23 R BREEAF
A RERE) A
Available-for-sale financial At ESREE
assets 204,000,000.00 31,680,000.00 235,680,000.00
Long-term equity investments R EAIRIEIRE 7,733,641,114.30 (31,680,000.00) 7,701,961,114.30
2012 20124F
Adoption of
accounting
standards of
"Accounting
Standard for
Business
Opening balance/ Enterprises ~ Opening balance/
Incurred No. 2 — Incurred
during the year Long-term Equity during the year
prior to adoption Investments”  following adoption
SRAg R
RARIEL (bxestEl RAREY

F25i— R
B E)

BRER AR F

BRRR R

ilable-for-sale financial At ESREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 &R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) A FS IR TP EE(58)
31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=f+-A=+—H(AE¥ )

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

3. Accounting year 3. SETEIR
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 AEEEeHFERACESE  AE
December of each calendar year. FETATHEBZEI12A31HI1E °

4. Functional currency 4. FEERAALE
The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in ZAUNSIERY: Z N IVA S RN P e
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts AN E®ESBARE - RERRI
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless SAASN - AARITABEMNER

otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries and associates of the Company may determine RAR TEFRE REERE - RIT
their own functional currencies based on the major economic HELMEMNEZLBERRATTRE
environment in which they operate the business. In preparation of HEllRAME  mRMBBRENE
financial statements, their functional currencies shall be translated RBARE -
into RMB.

5. Business combination 5. 1EAH
A business combination is a transaction or event that brings REAM  BREMERMREALE
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity. BHLEAHTK—ERSE EBOI
Business combinations are classified into business combinations ZHREE - PERHDR/E—EHT
involving entities under common control and business combinations RESHMIER—ZEH TEESH -

not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under [ — % TIER A vF

common control

A business combination involving entities under common control HEAHNEEES ARG RRF—
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities FRBRIZ T3 &R ES] - B IS
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before WIEHMER - BR—ZEH THRE
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For Eff o A—ZEHTHRESH  ES
a business combination involving entities under common control, FFERSHEMPES G b EE %
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another M—HBEHE 2HEHFMNEMD
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while EREEHT - A0 - BIEAHA
that other entity participating in the combination is a party being BIREGH IS G EGIEN B -

absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in SO HER — G T hES MR RE
a business combination involving entities under common control WEENBE  RAatBERSHA
shall be measured at their carrying amounts at the combination HEREEEE - AT RISHEA
ecorded by the party being absorbed. The difference EREEEEINNEHEES
mount of the net assets obtained and the BE(HETRHE

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

o).

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on
the acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating
in the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity
participating in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date
refers to the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control
of the acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their
fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equity
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree obtained in
the business combination, measured at fair value, was recognized
as goodwill, which is subsequently measured at cost less
cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair value of the sum of the
consideration paid (or equity securities issued) and equity interests
in the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the share of the attributable net identifiable assets
of the acquiree, a review of the measurement of the fair values
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, the
consideration paid for the combination (or equity securities issued)
and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that the fair value
of the sum of the consideration paid for business combination (or
equity securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held
prior to the date of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of
the share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree

ined in the business combination, the difference is recognized
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

— - EESFHBERI S5t b5 (8)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
6.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled

&R

AT RER NS O E LT A E
RIETE - BREAARREITAAE
£2013F12 A31 H ILFE R 3R
& TR BRIEWARAEHAE

by the Company, including separable parts of an enterprise or B(Eh%E  wWRESEMF A HEE
investee and structured entities controlled by the Company etc. D PARARE PRSI AL 88

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company has made
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
interests, income, expenses and cash flow are eliminated in full on
consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess
shall be allocated against minority interests.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust
the subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair
values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which the
ombination occurs. While preparing the comparative consolidated
adjustments are made to related items in

prior period as if the reporti

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD

)o

I

REAFMBERRE - FARRASE
ARR—HO S HEMEETEER
BT AR A EFERNERNRR T
MEFHE  CEREARFNEEK
RPB—H - AEBAIE R ZH
MMEXGELANEE  AfF  #
# A - BRARERENS G
2R -

FREVBERDENE HERER
TAOBBRREZ TR AR R ER
THEANMEN - EBREDRD
SRR

HEEIER — 2 H TR R RA HE
BHF LA KEETHRERRM
RenEaAEENGEEZBRE
MAAHMBRE  EEAKEHE
EHIRER L - EREA HMBRE
B UBERRENSEAHRE
E BEMIBRBENAABEARE
& FABNMERFETHE

SR BBA R THERAHRE
WA - BAGHOEERRAR
SREE A GE MMM L BT
B - MELBRA G ERRE - ¥
HIHABH S R 0 AR i 1T
BRA GRS T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Fl;

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

6.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The Group's control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the
control substances.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign currency
translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition, in
the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates. At the
balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated
using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet
date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit
or loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income
based on the nature of the non-monetary items.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

8. Foreign currency operations and foreign currency SN EEFERNINEE SRR ITE (48)
translation (Continued)
For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional HRIBIMNS S - B LR B R
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as REGHBRACBTESARE
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated HEEBBRTIMEAENBMEEA -
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and HALEABERAMABEERTE
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using fRERBERIARDEFEER
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and SN - EAhIE B IR AR A HE R
expense items in the income statement are translated using the TE  FERPHKRANMERER
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions ﬁ?ﬁ?&%%i%ﬁq?fﬂlﬁ—?—?ﬁﬁ o I
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the AT HEERNINER T RRITHE
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income §§E ERAEMEERES EEE
and presented as a separate component of equity in the balance BEXRPERRERRE TEBIIR -
sheet. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other REFRIMEER - BEZFEINEEH
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation B AR A Weas EAEE&E Hi18
is recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If the & BDRBEREELAIGE
disposal only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation,
the amount is recognized on a pro-rata basis.
Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign SNEIR @ RMEBIAREINTF RRIRER
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the 2 KAREREFEEHFHES
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange HE  EXEHHRSTERIELH
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item EIAE - EREREREEIIR -
in the cash flow statement.

9. Financial instruments TRTA

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial
Instruments

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument.

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

S

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial
asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets), i.e. writes off
the financial asset from the account and balance sheet, when the
following conditions are met:

(1)  the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired;

(2)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial
asset.

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the
date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) A FS IR TP EE(58)
31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=f+-A=+—H(AE¥ )

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. E@MTA(E)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets BB E DM E

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the REBHSREENVIARERR S
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or RUAARBEASEEEDHAL
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available- HERNEREE  BHAEZIHRK
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective & ERMEWRGIE - A E R
hedging instruments. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair BE WETAEREHITENITE
value. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or THE sREEEVNREREIAAA
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit BEE - HRAAAEBEAERR
and loss of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial BHASHERNSREE - 186
assets of other categories are included in the amount initially RZEREETAEHIER - B4R
recognized. A EREERBRSERGT AR

JRIER T -

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by CREENEETSIVRNE S ¢
its category:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss KURnBlETZE AREE)FA 2
Bl L& E

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial AR EBEEHEZEH AR B
assets at fair value through profit or loss and those designated HENEMEE  BREAAABEN=Z
upon initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through BHEEZFH:FAZHEZNEREEMN
profit or loss. A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss IR T AU AAEBENER
is the financial asset that meets one of the following conditions: HE T ASHERNSREE - A
the financial asset is acquired for the purpose of selling it in a AREEFTEEEZFHTAEHBER
short term; the financial asset is a part of a portfolio of identifiable HEeRtEEREmE FliEts —8
financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is SREE  BISZEemEEMNENE
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages ETERHALE  BRETESRE
this portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; the financial BEHA SRR ITAEEEN—3D
asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated as an BEBEREBBERACEAHAFEAEEH
effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or R F A ZECETERE  BRADT
a derivative that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of an A£TA B2 HECEAEXRES
unquoted equity investment (without a quoted price from an active TEMHTETER BRUBEERER
market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. For such HWATAT R - EEERTST AR
kind of financial assets, fair values are adopted for subsequent BHEEARBETRENETENER

measurement. All the realized or unrealized gains or losses on TARERBWABBINZERL
these financial assets are recognized in profit or loss for the current BHEEMITET ARSI - R EES
period. Dividend income or interest income related to financial MEE  RAAAEBEETEE

i e through profit or loss is charged to profit or loss 2 BEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

[T. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

A financial asset is designated on initial recognition as at fair value

through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following

conditions:

).

(1)

4)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring
the financial instruments on different bases.

a group of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported on that basis to the
Group's key management personnel, according to formal
documentation regarding risk management or investment
strategy.

a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)
from the relevant hybrid instrument shall be prohibited.

a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial
Liabilities

Investments in equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be
reliably measured shall not be designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets on initial recognition classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified into financial
assets of other categories; financial assets of other categories
cannot be reclassified into financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, either.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or
losses arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition
are recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period.

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial
Liabilities (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are on initial recognition designated as available for sale
or are not classified as any of the aforesaid categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. The premium/discount is amortized using effective interest
method and recognized as interest income or expense. Changes in
the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized
as other comprehensive income in capital reserve, except for
impairment losses and exchange differences resulted from
monetary financial assets, until the financial asset is derecognized
or determined to be impaired, at which time the accumulated
gain or loss is transferred to profit or loss for the current period.
Dividends or interest income relating to an available-for-sale
financial asset are recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.

Investments in equity investments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably
measured, are measured at cost.

The Group'’s financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, and transaction costs relating to other
financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined
by its category:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial
Liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated upon
initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial liability held for trading is the financial
liability that meets one of the following conditions: the financial
liability is assumed for the purpose of repurchasing it in a short
term; the financial liability is a part of a portfolio of identifiable
financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages
this portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; the financial
liability is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated as
effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or
a derivative that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of an
unquoted equity investment (without a quoted price from an active
market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. For such
kind of financial liabilities, fair values are adopted for subsequent
measurement. All the realized or unrealized gains or losses on
these financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss for the
current period.

A financial liability is designated on initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss only when it meets one of the
following conditions:

(1)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring
the financial instruments on different bases.

(2) a group of financial instruments is managed and its

performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and

information about the group is reported to the Group’s key

nanagement personnel, according to formal documentation
i ent or investment strategy.
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II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — - BESFHHERTIS5HLEH(E8)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9.  Financial instruments (Continued) 9. EBTH(E)

Classification and Measurement of Financial THBESENTIZE(E)

Liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss KR BETEAREE:AZH

(Continued) BmmzfE (&)

(3) a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded () PE—HEHKFZEHRATEILARN
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not BAETHE  BRIERATETAY
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument; BETANRERELZAERNK
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s) & TR ARSTE T ERET
from the relevant hybrid instrument shall be prohibited. EE LIRS TAR D o

(4)  a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative (4) PERESTEMEAEIUSHK
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be BENEERBRBYEETE
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent BEFENRAITETANEST
balance sheet date. Ao

Financial liabilities on initial recognition classified as financial CEENRERAESXCBBES D

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified RUAARBEFEAHZHAAER

into financial liabilities of other categories; financial liabilities of BanmemaBE  TeHESBERE
other categories cannot be reclassified into financial liabilities at HERBE: HtbemAEHRTaE
fair value through profit or loss either. PERNAARBEFEAHEZEHTA

EHRENERAsE -

Other financial liabilities At @ aE

After initial recognition, such kind of financial liabilities are HRUFEemAE  KAEBRAE
measured at amortized costs by using the effective interest % RRBRKANEITREE -
method.

Financial guarantee contracts BB ERE A

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer MBS ERER @ RIERBEAFMGEA
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for HE - BEBATEITERE @ RE
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment ARBHERITEB R ERER(ER
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. AR - PBERERAENHRERR/E
Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, BERZRBAREBEE  TEBRIEE
at fair value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not RARREEAEEEEHTAEH

designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or BENERBENTBERAR -
loss, they are, after initial recognition, subsequently measured at I HERR - WREERA(ES
the higher of: the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure El R i

ettle the present obligation at the balance sheet AT B E A
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II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. E@MTA(E)
Impairment of Financial Assets TREE A
The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount AEEREEABEREYEREEN
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating REBEETRE  ARBEERY
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the ZemEEZEREN  SHRBEZSE
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is B RASMEEZSRENTE R
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the B EREREEVRERRERSE
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the AR HZeRMEENTERRRES
expected future cash flows of the financial asset. MEATE  BhFEeMiZrEE

IRl SERt B EIR -

Financial assets carried at amortized cost BN B 8% BB

If an impairment on a financial asset has incurred, the carrying BERMER  $zZemEENREE
amount of the asset is reduced to the present value of expected ERLERAARRERE(TEER
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not ARBENRRERABR)RE B
been incurred) and such reduction is taken to profit or loss for the Bt AR BB - Bt ARBE SRS
current period. The present value of expected future cash flows is RE - ZRZemEEREERF=E(AD
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. AR ST E T M ERR AR )R
effective interest rate computed on initial recognition) and includes T - WERBBEERDOER -

the value of any related collateral.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset HEHGHESANSHEEEBET
is individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of REAE  NEREFERBPFEE
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current HRME - BERBERK  FFAEHIE
period if there is objective evidence of impairment. For a financial wo HBHSBIAEANEHEE -
asset that is not individually significant, it is included in a group BREEEFRUGCHARREZN SR
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and BEMAaTETRENR - EFAH
collectively assessed for impairment. If no impairment incurs for an REERENEREE(BEBESHE
individually assessed financial asset (whether the financial asset is BAMTEANEREE)  BRER
individually significant or not individually significant), it is included FREUEARBREENEREEAS
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics REETRENR - B BIERRREE
and collectively assessed for impairment. Assets for which an BRWEREE  TEEEABRAMU
impairment loss is individually recognized is not included in a ERRBERNESRMEEMRS PHEST
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and BEAIR

collectively assessed for impairment.

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

).

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

If, subsequent to the Group’s recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
However, the reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment loss not been recognized at the date the
impairment is reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial
asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Objective evidence indicating that available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired include significant or prolonged decline in
fair value. “Significant” is judged by the extent of fair value below
its cost and “prolonged” is judged by the length of period where
fair value falls below its cost. The impairment loss on an available-
for-sale equity investment is not reversed through profit or loss,
and any increase of fair value that occurs after the impairment is
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) EE;EIE(,%E)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued) EREERE(E)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-
for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the original impairment loss
was recognized, the original impairment loss is reversed with the
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such a financial asset is impaired,
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value
of expected future cash flows which are discounted at the current
market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized as an
impairment loss in profit or loss for the current period. Once an
impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed.

For an equity investment which is not quoted in an active market
and for which the fair value cannot be reliably measured, any
impairment is accounted for in accordance with the above
principles.

Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
Group does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for
as follows: (i) if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes
the financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities;
(ii) if the Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the
Cial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the

i ind recognizes the relevant liability.

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD
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II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — - BESFHHERTIS5HLEH(E8)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Receivables 10. FEUFRIA
(1) Receivables Which Are Individually Significant (1) EHEzEEANEIEHE
and for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is R E G B EN R
Recognized Separately
Receivables are individually significant and tested for REE L EIH SRR E AR EIGK
impairment individually if according to the Group’s TH iR R E AR P EIERK
judgment, the balance of accounts receivables and other MEM B R ERRE BB ARE
receivables due from an individual customer accounts for 20,000,0007tH) » BN BERESE
more than RMB20 million in the total balance of receivables. BEAWEBEITRENR - &
When objective evidence indicates that the receivable FERBEERPZERIESE
has been impaired, bad debt provision is made based on ERMER © AEBIRIEH AR
the shortfall of the present value of future cash flow as EREREENEREEENZE
compared to its carrying amount, and is charged to profit B FHRIERER - STAEHIE
and loss for the current period. = e
(2) Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is (2) IAHEFHEERERLE
Recognized by Group WosE
For receivables which have not undergone individual REBETOLE HEITERFNEH
assessment, provision for bad debt is recognized by grouping FEWRIBIR(E A R 3 D &
the receivables based on their credit risk features. Other than ETHE  IoRHREAFHE
receivables for which provision for bad debt is recognized B - IRE BEFHRERE
separately, bad debt provision is made according to the B EUGRIESN - RIBLARTEFE
actual loss ratio of the same or similar receivable groups or g7 MERISAEEN S - AFREL
receivable groups with similar credit risk features, with due ERRRSERERRRAESH
regard to the current situation. The Group determines the BRIBAESER  SE5RKE
grouping in terms of credit risks using age of the accounts SUHETE FERHR AR AR - AN
receivables and other receivables and uses aging analysis to B ARRER1E R {E BRI REEE
make provision for bad debts. The percentage are as follows: FENFHIEAES - WERARRER AT
SR FE A AR SR LA FE UK SR TR
EEREELPINT
Age Percentage provided for
BRie FHRLL B
Within 1 year 1 AR 5%
1-2 years 1224 15%

2-3 years
3-4 years
4-5 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
10. Receivables (Continued)

(3) Receivables Which Are Not Individually
Significant But Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized Separately
For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its
carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss
for the current period.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

10. FBRUWGKRIE ()

(3) EREFHEHETEAEER
AT B AR B JE R

AEEHNEBRSRETEARE
FHEEBERRPAZEURIASE

ERER - ARERBEEARAER
EREREENEREEERZE
B RTRRREE - STABHE

TR
fally

BN AR E R KRB RME
EEANOE - EBELD
i WE - BETERE - RERE
BETRE  BRRERE - X

debt provision already made. SHE AT RV AR E -
11. Inventories 1. &
Inventories include materials in transit, raw materials, work in FEREERYE BEMH - EE
progress, finished goods, materials under entrusted processing, self fo ERG RENIHME  B8F
made semi-finished goods and turnover materials etc. PR am AN RIS RS o

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The
actual cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using

FEIZBRAETIIGE - FEK
AEERBAA - I TRAME ALK
Ao BHEER - RAMEFDELE

weighted average method or specific identification method. Low A BEEEEERKA - KESE
value consumables are amortized by using immediate write-off PR — IR AT -

method.
The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value, a provision for decline in value of
inventories is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in value
of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is
higher than the carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is
reversed. The reversal is limited to the amount originally provided
for the decline in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

imated selling price in the ordinary
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

12.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates, and
equity investments where the Group does not have control, joint
control or significant influence over the investees.

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment,
the initial investment cost is determined as follows: for a business
combination involving entities under common control, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment is the carrying
value of the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s equity of the
party being absorbed on the consolidated financial statements
of the ultimate controller; for a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the initial investment cost of
the long-term equity investment is the cost of combination (For
a business combination not involving entities under common
control achieved in stages that involves multiple transactions, the
initial investment cost is carried at the aggregate of the carrying
amount of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree before the acquisition date and the new investment cost
incurred on the acquisition date.). The cost of combination is the
aggregate of the fair values of the assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer. Other
comprehensive income recognized as a result of equity accounting
and held prior to the acquisition date is accounted for on the same
basis as where the assets or liabilities are directly disposed of by the
investee in disposing of such assets or liabilities. Accumulated fair
value change on equity investments which are included in other
comprehensive income as financial instruments and held prior
to the acquisition date is transferred to profit or loss under cost
accounting. For a long-term equity investment acquired otherwise
than through a business combination, the initial investment cost is
determined as follows: for a long-term equity investment acquired
by paying cash, the initial investment cost is the actual purchase
price paid and those costs, taxes and other necessary expenditures
directly attributable to the acquisition of the long-term equity
investment; for a long-term equity investment acquired by the issue

ity securities, the initial investment cost is the fair value of
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II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

12

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

For a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in
the Company’s financial statements. Control refers to the power
over an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. For addition or reduction of
investments, the cost of long-term equity investments is adjusted.
Cash dividend or profit distribution declared by an investee is
recognized as profit or loss in the current period.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control refers to the contractually-
agreed shared control over an arrangement and related activities
under such arrangement shall be decided upon with the
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unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Significant E'J/ B —RRBRTEREK - EX

influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating TE - REHHIRE B EL

policy decisions of the investee but cannot control or jointly control ERRELERRNOES - BLTHE

with other parties over the formulation of those policies. H12 i 3K %Eﬁiﬁi\ﬂ’ﬂfi B R E
LEHER B EIE

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment
cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing
entity’s interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit
or loss for the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly.

HRRENDBRDBBRAT

RAEDER  RERERENIS
&Eﬁ$ﬁ#&§ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ&ﬁ$
A SRR FEEA R BEMNREN -

AE%%%&QWW%&§%$vE
HIB IR NG R EKA/NRIE
REZARKEEMATHRFEER
REBEEOCEN  HEZBFAZHE
i R FERARERERKA -




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses and other comprehensive income made by the
investee as investment income or losses and other comprehensive
income after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee's net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee's identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount
of the investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group’s
share of any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by
the investee. The Group’s share of net losses of the investee is
recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the investment
together with any long-term interests that in substance form part
of its net investment in the investee is reduced to zero, except that
the Group has incurred obligations to assume additional losses.
The Group adjusts the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment for any changes in owners’ equity of the investee (other
than net profits or losses, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution) and includes the corresponding adjustments in the
shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference
between the proceeds actually received and carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. For a long-term
equity investment accounted for using the equity method, the
amount originally included in the shareholders’ equity is transferred
to profit or loss for the current period on a pro-rata basis according
to the proportion disposed of.

For a long-term equity investment, refer to ltem 24 under Note
Il for the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

13.

14.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right
that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or
loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on
the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:
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Project Expected useful life (years)
L Fest e A E ()
Land use rights 3 {55 FR A 48.5-50
Houses and buildings EEZEEY 14.5-30

For an investment property that is subsequently measured using
the cost model, refer to Item 24 under Note Il for the test for
impairment and recognition of provision for impairment.

Fixed assets

A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in
profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

14.
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Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BIEEE(E)
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased BlEEERBRAETVGE - 1B
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any BEETEENKABIEBEER 4
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working B E  AERREEEBEEESRE
condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising AI £ FAAARE B P 38 AE RO P E IR BR B Y
from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve ZHEBENEMI L o REREZRE
offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts of RELEBTANEEEE BRI
accumulated depreciation recognized; and certain equipment of XL TE & RO AN R B IR R - 3
the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain HRAERSENRATE - URER
subsidiaries namely Weichai America Corp., Shaanxi Fast Gear B RE - FARMRILERRA]
Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi’an Fast Auto Drive RIEETHFERERAR - BEHET
Co., Ltd., for which double-declining balance method is used FEmARARRAALRHIEE
for depreciation, the straight line method is adopted for the HERAFNEEREITERAER
depreciation of other fixed assets. BMREIRRE 2N - HtEEEERE
HRAERE
The estimated useful lives, net residual value rates and annual EHEEEENENERAS® TR
depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows: BEERFEFEXRIRAOT -
Estimated Estimated Annual
useful life net residual depreciation
[tem (years) value rate (%) rate (%)
TEEHERSS  EiLFEER FHEX
15H (£F) (%) (%)
Land 1 Indefinite 0 0
FHABR
Houses and buildings BE MEEY) 12-35 3-5 2.71-7.92
Machinery and equipment 2SR 4-12 3-5 7.91-23.75
Vehicles T A 4-10 3-5 9.50-50.00
Electronic equipment BB 3-12 3-5 7.91-47.50
Other equipment Hinzk 3-10 3-5 9.50-40.00

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.

or the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
nt related to a fixed asset, refer to [tem 24 under Note II.
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EENEMSS  BOFREMFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 &R




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

15.

16.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including
all necessary construction expenditure incurred during the
construction period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized
before the construction gets ready for its intended use and other
relevant expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the
asset is ready for its intended use.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to a construction in progress, refer to Item 24
under Note II.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:
(1)

expenditures for the asset are being incurred;

orrowing costs are being incurred;

HRRENDBRDBBRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I[I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — - BESFHHERTIS5HLEH(E8)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

16. Borrowing costs (Continued) 16. fEREMA(E)

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as
follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the
amount of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest
expense incurred on that borrowing for the period less any
bank interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds
before being used on the asset or any investment income on
the temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the
amount of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is
determined by applying a weighted average interest rate to
the weighted average of the excess amounts of accumulated
expenditure on the asset over and above the amounts of
specific-purpose borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

17.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets
and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the
Group.

The useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

871 5 ¥R = Bt 5 (48)
—E-=F+ZA=+—A(AR%T)

— - EESFHBERI S5t b5 (8)

17. BEEE

B AEEEREAGHNLENER
AREMAREE - BEKAREH A 5E
ET R T AR - WARAETT
st 8 - BEXAHTIENEY

BE  HAoR{EEENA

it E

B EBEIARBLEELIZRA

#BEEE -

B AERREERAEEHREHE

T HRRAEE MRS -

AR

HRAEBESREEN R NIERS

ERSw T EENELEE

o

Useful life (years)

EREm (6)

Technology know-how HAERI 3.5-20 years
3.5-20%F

Land use rights b AR A 30-50 years
30-504F

Software /s 5-10 years
5-10%F

License R RE 10 years
104

Orders on hand EFEE 1-25 years
1-254F

Customer relationship BERMER 2-17 years
2-174%

Others EAh 3-10 years
3-104

Trademark rights PR AR Indefinite
TEE

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
ounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
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II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — - BESFHHERTIS5HLEH(E8)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

17. Intangible assets (Continued) 17. BREE(E)
An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using ERESNARNEBIEE  ®HER
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible SRARBERLEE AKEED
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life REFEFERT HERSHERD
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes BB EM RS LR AT
adjustment if necessary. Bz - WEREITHE o
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for HERSH I M RENEREE - &R
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there REEFERETR - FFEETRE
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of A - WEBEEESTHE &S
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every EetHMEEERSaETER
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence IRBERBEXRBEASHSEARD -
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted Al b AEnARNEREER
for in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite BORETTE A RIE ©
useful life stated above.
The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and REEGAHRABLBEENZ L
development project into expenditure on the research phase [ 7 /% BT 5T B B ST AN B B B BT
and expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the e AR  RBEERFTA
research phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in EHEE  HARBENIE  REHE
which it is incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is R TR - ARETAER
capitalized when the Group can demonstrate all of the following: b Bl : SEREZETLEENEEER
(i) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so ERAKHEERM ERBATE A
that it will be available for use or sale; (ii) the intention to complete B ZELEEYEASHENE
the intangible asset and use or sell it; (iii) how the intangible asset BV AEESALENZONAR -
will generate probable future economic benefits. Among other BERNERERZEVEELED
things, the Group can demonstrate the existence of a market for EnFEMSNETLEES ZFED
the output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself % B EERENERD - 825
or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible FHREBA  ARANE - M5
asset; (iv) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other BRMEAME IR FF - A& ER
resources to complete the development and the ability to use BEMFRE  YAENERIGLEX
or sell the intangible asset; and (v) its ability to measure reliably BEE  BRNZEREERER
the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its B A AT B - TR L
development. Expenditure in the development phase that does not MEHEREXH - REERAE

meet the above criteria is recognized in profit or loss for the period HAfEas o
in which it is incurred.

or the test for impairment and recognition of provision for 8 ERE R
elated to an intangible asset, refer to Item 24 under RIA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ - EESsBERiastibst (&)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

18. Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

18. RESEER
REGHEREMELER By

method with amortization period as follows: HaE -

Amortization period (years)
ESHEA(F)
Industrial mould fee THREES 1-5 years
1-54
Industrial equipment fee THREE 5 years
5%
Expenditure on improvement HABREEEHRRZ T the shorter of useful life
of fixed assets leased in and lease period
A mEEE R

19. Provisions 19. FEFFEE

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations, the Group recognizes
an obligation related to a contingency as a provision when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the
Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted
he best estimate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

19.

20.

Provisions (Continued)

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above;
and (i) the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be
measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue From the Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or
to be incurred can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue
arising from the sale of goods is determined in accordance with
the consideration received or receivable from the buyer under
contract or agreement, except where the consideration received
or receivable under contract or agreement is not fair. Where the
consideration receivable under contract or agreement is deferred,
such that the arrangement is in substance of a financing nature,
the amount of revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured
at the fair value of the consideration receivable under contract or
agreement .
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

20.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue From the Rendering of Services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date,
revenue associated with the transaction is recognized using the
percentage of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is
recognized to the extent of costs incurred that are expected to
be recoverable. The outcome of a transaction involving rendering
of services can be estimated reliably when all of the following
conditions are satisfied: the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably; it is probable that the associated economic benefits will
flow to the Group; the stage of completion of the transaction can
be measured reliably; the costs incurred and to be incurred for the
transaction can be measured reliably. The Group determines the
stage of completion of a transaction involving the rendering of
services by using the proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total costs. The total service revenue on a transaction
involving rendering of services is determined in accordance with the
consideration received or receivable from the recipient of services
under contract or agreement, except where the consideration
received or receivable under contract or agreement is not fair.

Interest Income

It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group's cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the
effective interest rate.

Royalty Income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as
stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease Income

Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they actually arise.

HRRENDBRDBBRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

21.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply
with the conditions attached to it and it can be received. If a
government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it
is measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable,
it is measured at a nominal amount. Government grants for
purchasing, building or forming long-term assets in other methods
regulated in government documents are recognized as government
grants related to assets. Judgments should be made based on the
necessary basic conditions for obtaining the government grants
when government documents are unclearly stated. Government
grants with purchasing, building or forming long-term assets in
other methods as basic conditions, are recognized as government
grants related to assets, whereas the rest as government grants
related to income. A government grant related to income is
accounted for as follows: (a) if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the
grant is recognized as deferred income, and recognized in profit
or loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognized;
(b) if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses
already incurred, it is recognized immediately in profit or loss for
the current period. A government grant related to an asset shall be
recognized as deferred income, and evenly amortized to profit or
loss for the current period over the useful life of the related asset.
However, a government grant measured at a nominal amount is
recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

22.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises
from a business combination or relates to a transaction or event
which is recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority
calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided
using the liability method.

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

(1) where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible
loss.

(2)  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

22,

Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years
and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be
utilized, except:

(1) where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

(2) in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will be reversed in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized in the future.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance
sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
in future periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance
sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
e deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IT. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

22.

23.

WEICHAI PoweR Co., LTD.

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating
lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of an Operating Lease
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a
lessee on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either
included in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss
for the current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of an Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for
the current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in
the period in which they actually arise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

24,

Impairment of assets

The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets
and long-term equity investments, which are accounted for using
the cost method and have no quoted market prices in active
markets, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, using
the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each
year-end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready
for intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow
expected to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the
recoverable amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
Group determines the recoverable amount of the asset group to
which the asset belongs. Identification of an asset group is based
on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset group are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asset
groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for
impairment of the asset is recognized accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) A FS IR TP EE(58)
31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—=F+_A=+—H(AR% )

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ BEGFHERIIS5Hb5H(EE)
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

24. Impairment of assets (Continued) 24. EEREGE)
For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of HEBOREANRNE  BRERE
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the SO S ENEREEER BB
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset BB EENA EZD BEEENE
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups, Ef #AoBSEENEESRR
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of EES B RN EEHLMEAS - 10
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group WEEMANEEMEMES  BARE
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of FAMNHRRER R EEA
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable EREEMABS B TRRAKEERE
segment determined by the Group. BRE DB °
In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill HEEHNENEREEHASEEEH
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of HEEETRERRE - EEE R
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of MWEEMASEEERASFERER
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for KK BAHTEEHNENEEMAS
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes HFEAEMAMARETRENR - FEA
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or e &5 - RRARERERK - A
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the BUBEEENEERNEEEAA
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups SETREND  CRAREEER
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of AR E e - A e B R AR E
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable BEN  HERLXSEELERD#
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the EEERANEEAAATRHENERT
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or BE BREEEANEELAESH
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other KRB Z IR R IBEENREE
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of EATEE - REGIEREMEEE
asset groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each EMEREEE
asset.
Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be it BERERR —EHR - EAR
reversed in subsequent accounting periods. etE T EEE -

WEICHAI PoWwER Co., LTD. L@ hBRNDBRAD




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

25.

Payroll

Payroll are all forms of consideration or compensation given
by the Group for obtaining services rendered by employees or
for terminating working relationship. Payroll include short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, severance benefits and
other long-term staff benefits. The benefits provided to spouses,
children, persons receiving maintenance, widows or widowers of
deceased staff and other beneficiaries are also included in payroll.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan)
The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance
administered by local governments. The relevant expenditure is
recognized, when incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the
profit and loss for the current period.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)
The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan, under which
contributions shall be made to a separately-administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit pension plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

Any re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension
plan, including actuarial gains and losses, change to the effect
on maximum assets (net of amounts included under net interest)
and return on assets under the plan (net of amount included
under net interest), are recognized immediately in balance
sheet, and included as incurred in owners’ equity through other
comprehensive income. No reversal to profit or loss will be made in
subsequent periods.

Previous service costs are recognized as expenses for the current
period on the earlier of the following dates: when amendments are
made to the defined benefit plan; or when the Group recognizes
the relevant reorganization costs or severance benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
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II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — -~ EZSHBERIIS5HL5H(8)

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

25. Payroll (Continued) 25. BT HEM(4E)
Severance benefits GER BT
Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees, AEEABTRHEEREN - £ET
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized 5| B0 F B R B AR AR A B AR Y B
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss THBEE - Wt AE BB 0
for the current period: when the company is unable to unilaterally N8 B8 75 I HR O] R 4 e 45 B R AR T
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to SEBE R TR BRI - &
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy XHRE P RN EHREN O EAEA
plan; or when the company recognizes costs or expenses relating AR AR E A o
to reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.
Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net MEFEAREX N FREIFEE
assets under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. FAFT R EFFHMF Z'K%Eﬂﬂ
Changes in the net obligations under the defined benefit plan ROEERANEEEBP AR
are recognized under cost of sales and general and administrative XEFRBTOEE  RIBKA - ’E%
expenses in the income statement. Costs of services include costs EHIRGHAR - BERBRAMEGEE
of services for the current period, costs of ser